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Minutes - DRAFT

Date: September 25, 2020
To: NCPA Commission
From: Cary A. Padgett, Assistant Secretary to the Commission

Subject: NCPA Commission Meeting / Teleconference Minutes

1. Call Meeting to Order and Introductions

Chair Roger Frith called the meeting to order at 9:33 am via teleconference. Introductions and roll

call were made. Those in attendance are shown on the attached attendance list.

2. Approve Minutes of the August 27, 2020, Regular Commission Meeting

Motion: A motion was made by Mark Chandler, and seconded by Teresa O’Neill to approve the Minutes
of the August 27, 2020, Regular Commission Meeting. The motion carried by a majority on a roll call

vote of those members present. San Francisco BART, Plumas-Sierra, Shasta Lake, and Truckee
Donner were absent.

PUBLIC FORUM

No comments from the public addressed the Commission.

Mike Brozo, Plumas-Sierra, joined the meeting at 9:40 am.
James Takehara, Shasta Lake, joined the meeting at 9:44 am.

REPORTS AND COMMITTEE UPDATES

3. General Manager’s Business Progress Report and Update
General Manager Randy Howard reported:

— Provided an update on COVID-19 cases in Placer County. Continue to follow the required
Agency procedures with regards to COVID-19. Plan to lift the hiring freeze as the County was
removed from the state monitoring list and cases in the County are declining. New hires will be
required to take a COVID test prior to employment. Extending employee telecommuting options
through the end of October.



— Employees at the Geothermal plant were impacted by air quality due to the smoke from the
nearby fire, but no employees were evaluated.

— Wil continue to see potential power shortages with temperatures continuing to be high. Diablo
Canyon down for six weeks, and Palo Verde one unit is down for refueling.

— Formally cancelled the Strategic Issues Conference that was scheduled for January 2021.

— Formally cancelled the Federal Policy Conference that was scheduled for April 2021. Plan to
reschedule for the fall of 2021, but a modified format.

— Rescheduled the 2020 Annual Conference to September 2022 at the Resort at Squaw Creek with
no cancellation penalties.

— Have a call scheduled with Placer County Water Agency to discuss watershed damages. Will
need to take a look at NCPA's project watershed damages as well.

— Upcoming Hometown Connection, Inc. (HCI), Board’s Strategic Plan meeting is scheduled for
next month. The Board will look at HCI's overall programs and activities and reevaluate their
finances.

— EIM with the California Independent System Operator is reviewing the GRC proposal and how it
will continue to expand.

— Provided an update on the CEC RPS ruling.

4. Executive Committee

Committee Chair Frith reported the Executive Committee met once, via teleconference, since the last
Commission meeting. The Committee heard an update from the General Manager, and discussed the
annual performance evaluation procedures and guidelines for the General Manager and General
Counsel positions.

5. Facilities Committee

Assistant General Manager Tony Zimmer reported the Committee met twice, via teleconference,
since the last Commission meeting. The Committee discussed Consent item 15 and Action item 16
on today’s agenda, and met under a special meeting agenda to discuss NCPA’s proposed Strategic
Plan. A quorum of the Committee was established, and recommend Commission approval of all
items.

6. Finance Committee

Finance Committee Chair Greg Scharff reported the Committee met once, via teleconference, since the
last Commission meeting. The Committee held a special meeting on September 2™ to discuss updating
the Agency’s Strategic Plan with new goals focused on controlling costs, minimizing risks and maintaining
NCPA’s financial strength. The Committee provided staff with input and suggestions when creating the
goals designed to support and execute the Plan’s initiatives. The next Finance Committee meeting will be
held on October 13%.

7. Legal Committee
General Counsel Jane Luckhardt reported the Committee met once, via teleconference, since the

last Commission meeting. The Committee met in Closed Session and discussed item 20 on today’s
agenda. No reportable action taken on that item. The next meeting is scheduled for October 15t
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8. Legislative & Regulatory Affairs Committee

The Legislative & Regulatory Affairs Committee Chair Mark Chandler reported the Committee met once
since the last Commission meeting to review and discuss NCPA'’s proposed Strategic Plan.

Members continue to participate in the Agency’s ongoing virtual Speakers Series sessions. The
Committee heard presentations from California State Senator Mike McGuire, and CARB Chair Mary
Nichols. Additional Speakers Series sessions coming up in the next month will include one with CPUC
Commissioner Cliff Rechtschaffen. NCPA will be hosting a Speakers Forum on October 6% from 10:00
am-12:30 pm with presentations by political polister Frank Luntz, and financial expert Daniel Hartman in
honor of Public Power Week. If you want to participate, please register in advance to access the Zoom
Webinar link. Notices to register have been sent via email. The next Committee meeting is scheduled
on December 2.

9. Members’ Announcements & Meeting Reporting
Pauline Roccucci, Roseville, announced Michelle Bertolino was appointed the first Vice President of the
Northwest Public Power Association Board of Trustees. The City of Roseville was named one of the

best places to live in the United States, ranking at 45" place overall.

Michelle Bertolino, Roseville, recognized Krista Bernasconi, Roseville Vice-Mayor, as the new Alternate
Commissioner, and will be Mayor next year.

Roger Frith, Biggs, thanked John Allard, outgoing Mayor of Roseville, for his time on the Executive
Committee and Commission.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners were polled to determine
if any member wished to pull an item or abstain from one or more items on the Consent Calendar.

Items 13 and 14 we pulled from Consent and discussed under Discussion / Action.

Motion: A motion was made by Jerry Serventi, and seconded by Teresa O’Neill.to approve the Consent
Calendar consisting of ltems 10, 11, 12, and 15. The motion carried by a majority of those members
present on a roll call vote with abstentions noted below for each item.

San Francisco BART and Truckee Donner were absent.

10. NCPA’s Financials for the Month Ended August 31, 2020 — approval by all members.
11. Treasurer’s Report for the Month Ended August 31, 2020 — accept by all members.

12. Disposal of Northern California Power Agency Surplus Property — note and file by all members
for the disposal of the following: Forklift from Geothermal Plant and E-waste and obsolete printers
from Hydroelectric Plant.

Fiscal Impact: This report has no direct fiscal impact to the Agency.
Redding abstained.
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13. MOVED TO DISCUSSION ACTION - Resolution 20-50, Approval of Amendment 5 to Contract
96-SNR-00110 (O&M Funding Agreement) — adopt resolution by all members approving
Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110, and authorize the General Manager of NCPA to execute
Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110, on behalf of NCPA, including any non-substantive

14. modifications to Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110 approved by NCPA’s General Counsel.
Fiscal Impact:. NCPA's administrative costs for processing Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-
00110 will be allocated to Members in accordance with approved cost allocation methodologies as
described in the NCPA annual budget.

15. MOVED TO DISCUSSION ACTION - Resolution 20-63, Approval of Second Amendment to the
Funding Agreement with California Municipal Utilities Association, South California Public
Power Authority for Energy Efficiency Services — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the

Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) General Manager or his designee to execute a Second
Amendment to the existing Funding Agreement with the California Municipal Utilities Association
(CMUA) and Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA) to increase the total not-to-exceed
amount by $185,500, of which NCPA will be responsible for payment of $31,058.78.

Fiscal Impact: No fiscal impact to NCPA. The expense for each additional upgrade will be shared
only by those POUs that agreed to fund the specific upgrade, and then divided between participants
based on the same “50/50” split that was used in the original cost allocation under Resolution 18-57,
with 50% of program costs divided equally among participating POUs and the remaining 50% of
costs split among each POUs based on their respective percentage of cumulative load from calendar
year 2016.

16. Resolution 20-64, Northwest Industrial Engine and Compressor Company - Five Year Multi-
Task General Services Agreement for Inspection and Maintenance Related Services;
Applicable to the following projects: All Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities,
NCPA Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members —
adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Northwest Industrial Engine and Compressor Company
for inspection and maintenance related services, with any non-substantial changes recommended
and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years, for
use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA
Members.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $500,000 over five
years. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will be issued
following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS

Item 13 — Resolution 20-50, Approval of Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110 (O&M Funding
Agreement) — adopt resolution by all members approving Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110, and
authorize the General Manager of NCPA to execute Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110, on behalf
of NCPA, including any non-substantive modifications to Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110
approved by NCPA’s General Counsel.

Fiscal Impact. NCPA’s administrative costs for processing Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110
will be allocated to Members in accordance with approved cost allocation methodologies as described in
the NCPA annual budget.

At the request of Commission Greg Scharff, this item was move off Consent to Discussion / Action for
further explanation. Assistant General Manager Tony Zimmer provided an overview and background of
the Western Area Power Administration’s Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110.
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Motion: A motion was made by Greg Scharff, and seconded by Jerry Serventi to adopt resolution
approving Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110, and authorize the General Manager of NCPA to
execute Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110, on behalf of NCPA, including any non-substantive
modifications to Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110 approved by NCPA’s General Counsel. Motion
carried by a majority on a roll call vote of those members present.

San Francisco BART and Truckee Donner were absent.

Redding, Roseville, Santa Clara, and Shasta Lake abstained.

ltem 14 — Resolution 20-63, Approval of Second Amendment to the Funding Agreement with
California Municipal Utilities Association, South California Public Power Authority for Energy
Efficiency Services — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the Northern California Power
Agency (NCPA) General Manager or his designee to execute a Second Amendment to the existing
Funding Agreement with the California Municipal Utilities Association (CMUA) and Southern California
Public Power Authority (SCPPA) to increase the total not-to-exceed amount by $185,500, of which NCPA
will be responsible for payment of $31,058.78.

Fiscal Impact. No fiscal impact to NCPA. The expense for each additional upgrade will be shared only
by those POUs that agreed to fund the specific upgrade, and then divided between participants based on
the same “50/50” split that was used in the original cost allocation under Resolution 18-57, with 50% of
program costs divided equally among participating POUs and the remaining 50% of costs split among
each POUs based on their respective percentage of cumulative load from calendar year 2016.

At the request of Commission Greg Scharff, this item was move off Consent to Discussion / Action for
further explanation. Assistant General Manager Jane Cirrincione gave a brief background on the
Funding Agreement.

Motion: A motion was made by Mark Chandler, and seconded by Pauline Roccucci to adopt resolution
authorizing the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) General Manager or his designee to execute
a Second Amendment to the existing Funding Agreement with the California Municipal Utilities
Association (CMUA) and Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA) to increase the total not-
to-exceed amount by $185,500, of which NCPA will be responsible for payment of $31,058.78.

Motion carried by a majority on a roll call vote of those members present.

San Francisco BART and Truckee Donner were absent.

16. Resolution 20-65, Approval of Services Agreement with Sonoma Clean Power Authority —
adopt resolution by all members approving the Services Agreement between NCPA and Sonoma
Clean Power Authority (SCP), pursuant to which NCPA will supply scheduling coordinator services
to SCP, including any non-substantive modifications to the Services Agreement as may be
approved by NCPA’s General Counsel. Staff also recommends that the Commission authorize
NCPA's General Manager to execute the Services Agreement on behalf of NCPA.

Fiscal Impact: In consideration for the services received from NCPA, SCP will pay Two Hundred
Five Thousand Dollars ($205,000.00) for each annual period during the term of the Services
Agreement. Costs and revenues associated with the development and administration of the
Services Agreement will be allocated to Members in accordance with approved cost allocation
methodologies as described in the NCPA annual budget.

Assistant General Manager Tony Zimmer gave a presentation on the Services Agreement between
NCPA and SCP. The Commission discussed and asked questions regarding future staffing needs, as
well as the need for possible hardware upgrades to the system in the future. Staff indicated that NCPA’s
system is capability of adding SCP as much of the system is automated, and staff is not anticipating
adding additional staff at this time. General Manager Randy Howard acknowledge that NCPA'’s Disaster
Recovery Center does have some limitations, and staff is in the process of finding a new location.
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Motion: A motion was made by Teresa O'Neill, and seconded by Mark Chandler to adopt resolution
approving the Services Agreement between NCPA and Sonoma Clean Power Authority (SCP), pursuant
to which NCPA will supply scheduling coordinator services to SCP, including any non-substantive
modifications to the Services Agreement as may be approved by NCPA’'s General Counsel. Staff also
recommends that the Commission authorize NCPA’s General Manager to execute the Services
Agreement on behalf of NCPA. Motion carried by a majority on a roll call vote of those members present.
San Francisco BART, Gridley, Plumas-Sierra, and Truckee Donner were absent.

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

17. Status of Geothermal Facility Kincade Fire Insurance Claim — staff will provide an update on the
Geothermal Facility insurance claim regarding the Kincade Fire loss.

Assistant General Manager / CFO Monty Hanks provided an update on the Geothermal Facility Kincade
Fire insurance claim. The Kincade Fire started October 23, 2019. The NCPA Geothermal Plant 1 was
tripped offline initiated by the #9 230 kV line protection relay. NCPA shut down both units for safety
compliance. PG&E de-energized the #12 transmission line, completely disconnecting the units. Staff
worked with CAISO and PG&E on a temporary solution to restore interconnection, including installation
of a shoe-fly jumper. The plant was back online January 22, 2020.

NCPA staff notified insurance underwriters and filed a claim. After several meetings with Aon, and the
underwriters, the underwriters’ adjuster denied the claim due to the following reasons: 1) Business
Interruption (BI) loss has to be substantiated by the covered property damage; 2) The fire was triggered
by a PG&E transmission line 6 miles away from the NCPA plants; and 3) NCPA property insurance
policy only covers 1000 feet of transmission line within the physical plant. If the fire had burned around
the NCPA #9 transmission line and was covered, the property damage was well below the $500,000
deductible, the time needed to repair and restore generation is well below the 60 day waiting period for
Bl loss coverage resulting in a zero claimable amount, and the 90 day Bl was caused by the PG&E
transmission line repair and maintenance. Calpine also submitted a Kincade Fire claim as well, but later
withdrew the claim due to the same reason.

18. NCPA Draft FY 2021-26 Strategic Plan — staff will provide an update on the draft NCPA FY 2021-26
Strategic Plan.

General Manager Randy Howard walked through a presentation of the proposed FY 2021-26 Strategic
Plan (Plan). The proposed Plan is being vetting through each Committee, as well as the Utility Directors.
The objectives and outcomes of the meetings are to identify current and future needs of the Agency and
Members, and how the Plan helps Members and the Agency prioritize staffing and resources to support
the goals. The Commission discussed and recommended adding resilience and reliable to bullet No. 2
of the Mission Statement, and to expand the Vision Statement to include citizen-owned members and
customers at the end of the statement.

Non-essential Members and NCPA staff left the meeting for closed session discussion. The
Commissioners and essential staff called into closed session using a separate call-in line.
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CLOSED SESSION

19. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — ANTICIPATED LITIGATION — Initiation of litigation
pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4) - one (1) case.

20. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - Existing litigation pursuant to Government Code Section
54956.9(d)(1): Name of case: Northern California Power Agency, City of Redding, City of Roseville,
and City of Santa Clara v. the United States, Court of Federal Claims No. 14-817C.

21. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - Existing litigation pursuant to Government Code Section
54956.9(d)(1): Name of case: /n Re PG&E Corporation and Pacific Gas and Electric Company,
Debtors; United States Bankruptcy Court, Northern District of California, Case Nos. 19-30088 (Lead
Case) and 19-30089 DM.

RECONVENED TO OPEN SESSION

All meeting attendees rejoined the public meeting.

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

Closed Session Disclosure: General Counsel Jane Luckhardt stated there was no reportable action
taken in Closed Session.

NEW BUSINESS

Chairman Frith made notice that this is his last meeting as Chair and Vice Chair Teresa O'Neill will take
the Chair seat at the next meeting of the Commission. James “Bo” Sheppard will be Biggs’ new
Commissioner at the end of the year.

Randy Howard thanked Chair Frith for his years of service as a Commissioner and as Chair of the
Commission and Executive Committee.
ADJOURNMENT

The September 25, 2020, Commission meeting was adjourned at 11:34 am by outgoing Chairman Roger
Frith.

Respectfully submitted, Prepared by,

ROGER FRITH CARY A. PADGETT

Commission Chair Assistant Secretary to the Commission
Attachments
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Northern California Power Agency
Commission Meeting / Teleconference
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COMMISSIONER
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NCPA Commissioners are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary.

MEMBER NAME
1 - ALAMEDA Jerry Serventi
2 - BIGGS Chair Roger Frith
3 - GRIDLEY Paul Eckhert
4 - HEALDSBURG David Hagele
5-LODI Mark Chandler
6 - LOMPOC Jenelle Osborne
7 - PALO ALTO Greg Scharff
8 - PORT OF OAKLAND Jared Carpenter
9 - PLUMAS-SIERRA REC Mike Brozo
10 - REDDING Kristen Schreder
11 - ROSEVILLE Pauline Roccucci
12 - SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID
TRANSIT DISTRICT
13 - SANTA CLARA Teresa O’Neill
14 - SHASTA LAKE James Takehara
15 - TRUCKEE DONNER
16 - UKIAH Mel Grandi
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Michelle Bertolino Roseville
Basil Wong Santa Clara
Randy Howard NCPA
Jane Luckhardt NCPA
Jane Cirrincione NCPA
Monty Hanks NCPA
Joel Ledesma NCPA
Tony Zimmer NCPA
Cary Padgett NCPA
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Commission Staff Report AGENDA ITEM NO.: O

Date: October 29, 2020
To: NCPA Commission
Subject: October 7, 2020 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes

The attached Draft Minutes are being provided for information and to augment the oral

Committee report.
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Minutes - Draft

Date: October 20, 2020

To:

NCPA Facilities Committee

From: Carrie Pollo

Subject: October 7, 2020 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes

Call Meeting to Order & Roll Call — The meeting was called to order by Committee Chair
Brian Schinstock (Roseville) at 9:04 am. Attending via teleconference and/or on-line
presentation were Alan Harbottle (Alameda), Mark Sorensen (Biggs), Paul Eckert (Gridley),
Jiayo Chiang (Lodi), Shiva Swaminathan (Palo Alto), Mike Brozo (Plumas-Sierra), Nick
Rossow (Redding), and Basil Wong and Steve Hance (Santa Clara). Owen Goldstrom (non-
voting Member with TID) also attended via teleconference. Those attending in person are
listed on the attached Attendee Sign-in Sheet. Commitiee Representatives from BART,
Healdsburg, Lompoc, Port of Oakland, TID, and Ukiah were absent. A quorum of the
Committee was established.

PUBLIC FORUM
No public comment.

OPEN SESSION

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS

2,

Approve Minutes from the September 2, 2020 Facilities Committee and Special
Facilities Committee Meetings.

Motion: A motion was made by Basil Wong and seconded by Jiayo Chiang recommending
approval of the September 2, 2020 Facilities Committee and Special Facilities Committee
meeting minutes. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Palo
Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Roseville, and Santa Clara. The motion passed.

All NCPA Facilities, Members, SCPPA - Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC MTGSA -
Staff presented back ground information and was seeking a recommendation for
Commission approval of a five-year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Evoqua
Water Technologies, LLC, for water services including condensate polisher/D! mix bed
vessel services, with a not to exceed amount of $1,000,000, for use at all facilities owned
and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. All purchase
orders will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.



This is a renewal agreement with an existing vendor. It is an enabling agreement with no
commitment of funds. NCPA has utilized this vendor in the past, and has a good working
relationship with the vendor. NCPA desires to enter into this agreement so established
terms and conditions are in place should this vendor be the successful bidder on future
projects. Execution of this enabling agreement will also increase the pool of qualified and
proven vendors for these types of services. NCPA does not currently have any agreements
in place with similar vendors. A draft Commission Staff Report and draft agreement were
available for review. It is recommended to place this item on the Commission Consent
calendar.

Motion: A motion was made by Mike Brozo and seconded by Brian Schinstock
recommending Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to
enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC
for water treatment related services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and
approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five
years, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA,
or by SCPPA Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi,
Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Roseville, and Santa Clara. The motion passed.

4. All NCPA Facilities (Except LEC), Members, SCPPA — Sulzer Turbo Services Houston,
Inc. MTGSA - Staff presented back ground information and was seeking a recommendation
for Commission approval of a five-year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Sulzer
Turbo Services Houston, Inc., for inspection and maintenance services, with a not to exceed
amount of $3,000,000, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA (except
LEC), NCPA Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. All purchase orders will be issued
following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

This is a renewal agreement with an existing vendor. It is an enabling agreement with no
commitment of funds. NCPA has utilized this vendor in the past, and has a good working
relationship with the vendor. NCPA desires to enter into this agreement so established
terms and conditions are in place should this vendor be the successful bidder on future
projects. Execution of this enabling agreement will also increase the pool of qualified and
proven vendors for these types of services. NCPA has a pending agreement for similar
services with Allied Power Group. A draft Commission Staff Report and draft agreement
were available for review. It is recommended to place this item on the Commission Consent
calendar.

Motion: A motion was made by Basil Wong and seconded by Brian Schinstock
recommending Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to
enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Sulzer Turbo Services Houston,
Inc. for inspection and maintenance related services, with any non-substantial changes
recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed
$3,000,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA (except
LEC), NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members. A vote was taken by roll call:
YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Redding, Roseville, and
Santa Clara. The motion passed.

5. NCPA CT Facilities — Pure Process Filtration, Inc. MTEMS - Staff presented back ground
information and was seeking a recommendation for Commission approval of a five-year
Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies with Pure Process
Filtration, Inc., for filters and filter storage, with a not to exceed amount of $1,000,000, for
use at NCPA CT'’s facilities only. All purchase orders will be issued following NCPA
procurement policies and procedures.
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This is a renewal agreement with an existing vendor. It is an enabling agreement with no
commitment of funds. NCPA has utilized this vendor in the past, and has a good working
relationship with the vendor. Storage is limited at the CT facilities and the vendor has space
to store at their location. NCPA desires to enter into this agreement so established terms
and conditions are in place for future purchases and storage of goods. There are no
additional agreements in place for similar purchases and/or storage services. A draft
Commission Staff Report and draft agreement were available for review. It is recommended
to place this item on the Commission Consent calendar.

Motion: A motion was made by Jiayo Chiang and seconded by Basil Wong recommending
Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-
Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies with Pure Process
Filtration, Inc. for filter purchases and storage of goods, with any non-substantial changes
recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed
$1,000,000 over five years, for use at the NCPA CT facilities. A vote was taken by roll call:
YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Redding, Roseville, and
Santa Clara. The motion passed.

6. NCPA CT Facilities — First Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Ground
Lease with the City of Lodi — Staff provided background information and was seeking a
recommendation for Commission approval of a First Amendment to the Second Amended
and Restated Ground Lease with the City of Lodi, adding additional Annex area to lease,
increasing the total annual lease payments to $1,040,620, with no change to the agreement
term, for use at NCPA’s CT Facilities.

The original Ground Lease was dated February 17, 1993 and effective January 1, 1993. An
Amended and Restated Ground Lease was entered into on March 22, 2010. On April 29,
2013 the parties entered into a Second Amended and Restated Ground Lease.

LEC has been operating with a shared facilities warehouse between CT1, CT2 and LEC.
Space has been tight for both parts storage and lay down space. As experienced during the
LEC forced outage, when significant work is performed, there is not enough space onsite for
laydown and, as a result, parts were stored outside the fence. In addition, LEC is preparing
for the major on the steam turbine and generators, and in doing so, there will be a significant
addition to the parts on hand. LEC has found that Sea Vans are effective and inexpensive
for storage. In order to obtain extra space, NCPA negotiated with the City of Lodi to annex
2.3 acres of additional space and amend the existing lease agreement.

In order to use the land, NCPA will need to make some minor improvements. It will be
leveled with a new base material installed for a firm surface that will be usable in the rainy
season. It will also include fencing to secure the area. In addition, lights and security will be
incorporated. The land improvements will cost $300,000. Because of the change of scope of
work in the LEC major, funds are available in the Maintenance Reserve to pay for these
costs. A draft Commission Staff Report and draft amendment were available for review. It is
recommended to place this item on the consent calendar.

Motion: A motion was made by Basil Wong and seconded by Mike Brozo recommending
Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First
Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Ground Lease with the City of Lodi, with
any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel,
for the Annex land and delegate authority for the General Manager or his designee to award
bids, execute agreements, and to issue purchase orders for the parts in accordance with
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NCPA Purchasing Policies and Procedures without further approval by the Commission to
make improvements on the Annex, for a total cost not to exceed $300,000, and approval for
these funds to come from the LEC Maintenance Reserve fund. Facilities Committee
approves this item as either one or two actions at the Commission meeting. A vote was
taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Plumas-Sierra, and Santa Clara.
ABSTAIN = Lodi, Palo Alto, Redding, and Roseville. The motion passed.

7. All NCPA Facilities, Members, SCPPA — Ancon Marine dba Ancon MTGSA - Staff
presented background information and was seeking a recommendation for Commission
approval of a five-year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Ancon Marine dba
Ancon, for specialized high pressure cleaning services, with a not to exceed amount of
$2,000,000, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members,
SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. All purchase orders will be issued following NCPA
procurement policies and procedures.

This is a new agreement with a new vendor. It is an enabling agreement with no
commitment of funds. NCPA has enabling agreements in place for similar services with
Gifford’s Backhoe Services and Northern Industrial Construction. Specialized high pressure
cleaning, vacuum trucks, safety and fire watch services, are required from time to time for
the operation and maintenance of NCPA facilities and those of our Members and SCPPA.
Geothermal staff was contacted by Ancon Marine dba Ancon, who expressed a desire to be
added to NCPA'’s vendor list for services, because they routinely work in the Geysers area.
After having met with this vendor, staff recommends that NCPA enter into an enabling
agreement with Ancon Marine dba Ancon, so established terms and conditions are in place
should this vendor be the successful bidder on future projects. Also, increasing the pool of
qualified vendors willing to work in the more remote location of NCPA’s Geothermal
Facilities, results in more competitive bidding when services are needed. A draft
Commission Staff Report and draft agreement were available for review. It is recommended
to place this item on the Commission Consent calendar.

Motion: A motion was made by Brian Schinstock and seconded by Jiayo Chiang
recommending Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to
enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Ancon Marine dba Ancon for
specialized high pressure cleaning, vacuum trucks, safety and fire watch services, with any
non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which
shall not exceed $2,000,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated
by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members. A vote was taken by roll
call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Redding, Roseville,
and Santa Clara. The motion passed.

8. AIll NCPA Facilities, Members, SCPPA - Rege Construction, Inc. MTGSA - Staff
provided background information and was seeking a recommendation for Commission
approval of a five-year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Rege Construction,
Inc., for maintenance services including grading, excavation, and paving, with a not to
exceed amount of $1,000,000, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA,
NCPA Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. All purchase orders will be issued
following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

This is a new agreement with a new vendor. It is an enabling agreement with no
commitment of funds. NCPA has enabling agreements in place for similar services with
Epidendio Construction, Inc., Gifford’'s Backhoe Services, Northern Industrial Construction,
and Granite Construction Company (pending). Geothermal staff was contacted by Rege
Construction, who expressed a desire to be added to NCPA’s vendor list for services,
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because they routinely work in the Geysers area. After having met with this vendor, staff
recommends that NCPA enter into an enabling agreement with Rege Construction, so
established terms and conditions are in place should this vendor be the successful bidder on
future projects. Also, increasing the pool of qualified vendors willing to work in the more
remote location of NCPA’s Geothermal Facilities results in more competitive bidding when
services are needed. A draft Commission Staff Report and draft agreement were available
for review. It is recommended to place this item on the Commission Consent calendar.

Motion: A motion was made by Brian Schinstock and seconded by Basil Wong
recommending Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to
enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Rege Construction for general
maintenance services, including grading, excavation, and paving, with any non-substantial
changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not
exceed $1,000,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA,
NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES =
Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Redding, Roseville, and Santa
Clara. The motion passed.

9. AIl NCPA Facilities, Members, SCPPA - Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial
Construction MTGSA - Staff presented background information and was seeking a
recommendation for Commission approval of a five-year Multi-Task General Services
Agreement with Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction, for miscellaneous
maintenance services including welding and safety/fire watch services, with a not to exceed
amount of $2,500,000, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA
Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. All purchase orders will be issued following
NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

This is a new agreement with an existing vendor. It is an enabling agreement with no
commitment of funds. Staff has utilized this vendor in the past, and has a good working
relationship with the vendor. NCPA desires to enter into this agreement so established
terms and conditions are in place should this vendor be the successful bidder on future
projects. NCPA has agreements in place for similar services with Gifford’s Backhoe
Services, Inc., Epidendio Construction, Inc., and pending agreements with Ancon Marine
dba Ancon, and Rege Construction. A draft Commission Staff Report and draft agreement
were available for review. It is recommended to place this item on the Commission Consent
calendar.

Motion: A motion was made by Basil Wong and seconded by Jiayo Chiang recommending
Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Five
Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial
Construction, for general maintenance services, including welding, safety, and fire watch
services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, which shall not exceed $2,500,000 for use at all facilities owned and/or
operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority
(“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs,
Gridley, Lodi, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Redding, Roseville, and Santa Clara. The motion
passed.

10. All NCPA Facilities, Members, SCPPA — MP Environmental Service, Inc. MTGSA — Staff
presented background information and was seeking a recommendation for Commission
approval of a five-year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with MP Environmental
Service, Inc., for removal and replacement of sulfur bins, phase separators, and vacuum
truck services, with a not to exceed amount of $3,000,000, for use at all facilities owned
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and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. All purchase
orders will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

This is a new agreement with an existing vendor. It is an enabling agreement with no
commitment of funds. This vendor will provide maintenance services including but not
limited to removal and disposal of sulfur bins, hazardous material, phase separators, and
vacuum truck services. Since this vendor provides removal of hazardous materials, it is also
recommended that this agreement be for use at NCPA facilities only. NCPA will be
requesting competitive bids specifically for the sulfur bin hauling and disposal services
required for the Geothermal Facilities. MP Environmental Services, Inc. will be one of the
prospective bidders. Staff has utilized this vendor in the past, and has a good working
relationship with the vendor. NCPA desires to enter into a multi-task enabling agreement
with MP Environmental Services, Inc., so established terms and conditions are in place
should this vendor be the successful bidder on future projects. Execution of this enabling
agreement will also increase the pool of qualified and proven vendors for these types of
services. NCPA currently has agreements in place for similar services with Patriot
Environmental Services, Gifford’s Backhoe Services, Fremouw Environmental Services,
Inc., and a pending agreement with Ancon Marine dba Ancon. A draft Commission Staff
Report and draft agreement were available for review. It is recommended to place this item
on the Commission Consent calendar.

Motion: A motion was made by Basil Wong and seconded by Brian Schinstock
recommending Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to
enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with MP Environmental Services, Inc.,
for general maintenance services, including removal and disposal of sulfur bins, hazardous
material, phase separators, and vacuum truck services, with any non-substantial changes
recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed
$3,000,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA. A vote
was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra,
Redding, Roseville, and Santa Clara. The motion passed.

NCPA Geothermal Facility - NOAA Middletown License Agreement — Staff presented
background information and was seeking a recommendation for Commission approval of a
License Agreement with the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration allowing
them to operate and maintain an observing platform consisting of an S-band radar system
and meteorological town on GEO J-Site, for a duration of 10 years, with no cost to NCPA, at
NCPA'’s Geothermal Facility.

NCPA entered into a License Agreement with the National Oceanic and Atmospheric
Administration (NOAA) on December 8, 2014. This License Agreement allowed NOAA to
place a weather monitoring station on the J-Site well pad of the NCPA Geothermal Facilities.
Aside from providing a 20 amp 120V circuit to power the unit, NCPA incurred no cost, was
not responsible for maintaining the equipment, and was not liable for any damages to the
weather station. NCPA entered into this agreement solely as a courtesy to NOAA, and its
effort to gather weather data.

The original agreement expired December 8, 2019. NOAA would like to establish a new
license agreement. The new agreement has the same terms and conditions as the original
one, but the term of the agreement is being updated to ten years, the previous agreement
had a term of five years. A draft Commission Staff Report and the license agreement were
available for review. It is recommended to place this item on the Commission Consent
calendar.
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13.

Motion: A motion was made by Jiayo Chiang and seconded by Alan Harbottle
recommending Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to
enter into a License Agreement with the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration
(NOAA) to place a weather monitoring station at the NCPA Geothermal Facility. A vote was
taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Redding,
Roseville, and Santa Clara. The motion passed.

All NCPA Facilities, Members, SCPPA — Katama Technologies, Inc. First Amendment
to MTCSA - Staff provided background information and was seeking a recommendation for
Commission approval of a First Amendment to the Multi-Task Consulting Services
Agreement with Katama Technologies, Inc. for consulting services related to business
strategy and project planning, increasing the not to exceed amount from $250,000 to
$1,000,000, for continued use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members,
SCPPA, or SCPPA Members. All purchase orders will be issued following NCPA
procurement policies and procedures.

On August 6, 2020, NCPA entered into a five-year Multi-Task Consulting Services
Agreement with Katama Technologies, Inc., for an amount not to exceed $250,000. This
agreement was developed primarily for a Member project relating to detailed design
services for a fiber optic cabling loop between key substations. Initially the scope of work
was estimated to fall within the available funds authorized by this agreement, but during the
scoping of the project, it became clear an increase to the agreement’s compensation
amount is required. For this reason, an amendment is necessary to provide adequate funds
for the project through completion, plus the availability of additional funds for use by NCPA,
its Members, SCPPA, or SCPPA Members over the course of the agreement’s five-year
term. This is an enabling agreement with no commitment of funds. This is also a Hometown
Connections Inc. (HCI) preferred vendor. NCPA currently has agreements in place for
similar services with Quest Media Supplies, and IEC Corporation. A draft Commission Staff
Report and draft first amendment to the agreement were available for review. It is
recommended to place this item on the Commission Consent calendar.

Motion: A motion was made by Jiayo Chiang and seconded by Mike Brozo recommending
Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First
Amendment to the Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with Katama Technologies,
Inc., with any non-substantial changes as recommended and approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, increasing the not to exceed amount from $250,000 to $1,000,000, for
continued use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, the Southern
California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), or SCPPA Members. A vote was taken by roll
call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Redding, Roseville,
and Santa Clara. The motion passed.

NCPA Geothermal Facility — Geothermal Plant 1 HVAC System Project — Staff
presented background information of the project and was seeking a recommendation for
Commission approval to increase the not to exceed amount of the Geothermal Plant 1
HVAC System Project from $893,817 to $1,500,000 (subject to approval of $606,183 in the
FY2022 budget), for use at NCPA’s Geothermal Facilities.

The original HVAC system installed at the Geothermal Plant 1 has outlived its useful life and
has many components in need of replacement and an upgrade. The HVAC system is a
critical system to the Plant as it conditions the space for employees, filters hazardous H2S
gas, reduces thermal degradation of important electrical systems and their insulation, and
removes excessive waste heat to keep indoor transformers operating efficiently. To evaluate
and upgrade the existing HVAC system, Costa Engineers completed a total upgrade design
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and engineering package. This package included replacement of major equipment utilized in
the HVAC system.

The Geothermal Plant 1 HVAC System Project was originally approved at the January 16,
2020 Commission Meeting, with a budget not to exceed $893,817 (funded in FY2021). After
soliciting bids as a Public Works project, in which no bids were received, a Formal
Competitive Bid process was followed and three responsive bids were received. The lowest
qualifying bid received was from Famand, Inc. dba SitelogiQ, for a total bid amount of
$1,266,506. These funds will come from a combination of FY2021 funds (already approved)
and FY2022 funds (pending approval). Utilizing the already authorized FY2021 funds, long-
lead equipment will be purchased and the services of the contractor will be secured.
Pending the authorization of the FY2022 additional funds, the project’s construction will
begin late in FY2021 and extend into the first quarter of FY2022, allowing the project
timeline to extend across two Fiscal Year budget cycles.

Motion: A motion was made by Brian Schinstock and seconded by Mike Brozo
recommending Commission approval of an Amendment to Resolution 20-08 authorizing
additional funds for the Geothermal Plant 1 HVAC System Project, increasing the total not to
exceed amount of this project from $893,817 to $1,500,000 (subject to approval of $606,183
in the FY2022 budget), and delegating authority to the General Manager or his designee to
award bids, execute agreements, and to issue purchase orders for the updated project
amount, without further approval by the Commission. A vote was taken by roll call: YES =
Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Plumas-Sierra, Redding, Roseville, and Santa Clara.
ABSTAIN = Palo Alto. The motion passed.

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

14,

15.

FY2020 Annual Billing Settlements Review — Staff presented a draft of the FY2020
Annual Billing Settlement for the period of July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020.

After internal accounting review, the final draft of the FY2020 Annual Billing Settlement was
reviewed by the Facilities Committee. The draft results include an approximate $2.8 million
refund from the plants, and approximately $2.3 million coming from management services,
pass-through costs, and third party revenues, for a total amount of $5.3 million in refunds.
The refunds for projects include the Hydro Project at $1.8 million, Geo at $869,000, CT1 at
$12,000, CT2 at $95,000, and the LEC at $128,000.

The next steps in this process are to present this draft to the LEC PPC October 7, 2020,
then the Utility Directors at the October 15, 2020 UD meeting. The final version of the
FY2020 Annual Billing Settlement will be presented to the Facilities Committee at the
November 4, 2020 Facilities Committee meeting, seeking a recommendation for
Commission approval. After that it will be presented to the LEC PPC for approval, and again
to the UDs in November. Staff will be seeking Commission approval at the December 3,
2020 Commission meeting.

Overview of FY2022 Budget Process and Approach — Staff provided an overview of the
FY2022 Budget process, and recommended operating budget directions.

The proposed budget process will continue with review of the draft budgets through the
Facilities, LEC PPC, and L&R Committees, and UD meeting, seeking a recommendation for
Commission approval. The budget is prepared on a project/program basis. Allocation for all
allocated costs are Power Management, Legislative and Regulatory, Judicial Action,
Administrative and General, and direct allocations. Previously approved methods will be

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes

Qctober 7, 2020



16.

17.

continued at this time with focus on NCPA controllable costs and aligning budgets with
expectations and previous actuals. Issues impacting the FY2022 budget include union
contracts (IBEW and HEA), PERS Pension with an increase of $375,000 (4%), OPEB, and
the CPI index of 1.3%. Other issues include capital and maintenance of assets, including
replenishment of reserves, and wildfire mitigation with increased efforts to minimize risks
and compliance with audit recommendations.

Recommendations for the FY2022 budget include a target increase of 1.3% for regular
operating and maintenance of the plants. All maintenance and capital projects will be
reviewed and vetted by the Facilities Committee and the LEC PPC Committee prior to
seeking a recommendation for Commission approval. Members expressed consideration for
maintenance that is critical, and needed, to keep the plants reliable and resilient. The salary
increase target range will be between $600,000 and $1 million. No new positions are
anticipated at this time. All other operating expenses will target no more than a 1.3%
increase as well.

New Business Opportunities — Staff presented an update regarding new business
opportunities.

South Sutter Water District (SSWD) has contacted NCPA, and is seeking Scheduling
Coordinator and Dispatch Services, with the possibility for a long term PPA for project
output. The SSWD Camp Far West Hydroelectric Project is a 6.8 MW reservoir, run-of-river
type of hydroelectric project, primarily focused on irrigation for rice farming in the area. The
project is RPS and RA eligible, and will be available in 2021.

Resource Adequacy Commitment Impacts on Operations — Staff presented and
discussed impacts Resource Adequacy commitments have on joint project operations.

All planned outage requests are subject to CAISO review, in which the CAISO may issue a
POSO, a requirement to supply substitute or replacement RA. Lack of substitute or
replacement RA may result in a planned outage being rejected by the CAISO. Planned
outage replacement can be supplied from system and/or local RA. Forced outage
replacement can only be supplied from like resources, located the same electrical bus. The
CAISO has expressed potential concerns with outages being reclassified from planned to
forced outages. Staff proposed possible RA substitution processes for both planned and
forced outages listed below, and is asking for feedback from Members.

Planned Outages — The planned outage schedule for the following compliance year period
is reviewed and approved by the Facilities Committee annually in either August or
September, then filed at the CAISO by October 15. At the time of the year ahead filing, on
October 31, any RA commitments in conflict with the approved planned outage schedule will
be noticed to applicable project participants. Project participants have the opportunity to
identify qualified substitute RA capacity at least 30 calendar days in advance of the month
ahead compliance deadline. If a project participant does not supply substitute RA capacity,
NCPA may seek to procure eligible substitute RA capacity on behalf of a project
participant(s) who does not provide substitute RA capacity by the deadline. Costs
associated with eligible RA capacity procured by NCPA will be allocated to the deficient
project participant(s). A planned outage may need to be cancelled if NCPA does not receive
a combination of transferred and/or procured eligible RA capacity that is sufficient to satisfy
the full substitution requirement. NCPA will seek alternative options such as a short term
opportunity outage or off-peak opportunity outage. Cost allocation for impacts associated
with a cancelled planned outage will be considered.
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19.

Forced Outages — Project participants are notified at the time of a forced outage. Project
participants have the opportunity to identify qualified substitute RA capacity within two
calendar days of the notice. If a project participant does not supply substitute RA capacity,
NCPA may seek to procure eligible substitute RA capacity on behalf of a project
participant(s) who does not provide substitute RA capacity by the deadline. Costs
associated with eligible RA capacity procured by NCPA will be allocated to the deficient
project participant(s). Any penalty costs incurred for RA commitments as a result of the
forced outage will be allocated to project participants based on their pro-rata share of
committed RA capacity that was not covered by eligible substitute RA capacity. A defined
period of days to qualify for this substitution procedure will be determined.

Substitute RA replacement rules will be incorporated into a new Facilities Agreement
Schedule, under Facilities Schedule 15. Rules will be applicable to jointly owned NCPA
projects including CT1, CT2, Geothermal Projects, and North Fork Stanislaus River
Hydroelectric Developments Projects. Staff will develop a draft Facilities Schedule 15 and
present for further consideration at a future Facilities Committee meeting.

PG&E Application for CapEx Recovery — Staff provided a presentation regarding PG&E’s
application for recovery of 2011-2014 CapEx (A.20-07-020).

On July 31, 2020, PG&E filed an application with the CPUC for Recovery of 2011-2014 Gas
Transmission and Storage Capital Expenditures. PG&E seeks a revenue requirement of
$416.3 million for the period 2011-2014 of GT&S capital expenditures that were unplanned.
PG&E proposes to “amortize” most of the $416.3 million revenue requirement over 36
months starting in April 2021, by applying it to the volumetric component of the negotiated
rates. Increasing the current rate from $0.1522/th to $0.1682/th. NCPA budgets will increase
at LEC by $1,481,344, at CT1 by $47,494, and CT2 by $9,597 for 2021. PG&E seeks a
CPUC Commission decision by February 2021.

Concerns, as well as questions, regarding the filing could push the decision back several

months to the fourth quarter of 2021, therefore pushing back the start of the amortization

period another year from PG&E's proposal of April 2021. This would overlap into the next
GT&S Rate Case expected in quarter three of 2021 on collections and rate impacts. Staff
will continue to monitor and develop potential options for recovery that are equitable, and
actions to prepare for the upcoming GT&S Rate Case.

NCPA Generation Services Plant Updates — Plant Staff gave an update on current plant
activities and conditions.

Geo - There were no safety recordables in September, with zero near misses. EH&S
training is 78% complete. Poor air quality impacted the area with a few days in the unhealthy
to hazardous range, and topping out at almost 600 AQI September 30, 2020. Average
generation for September was down to 81.8 MW, with the net generation at 58.9 GWh due
to the Plant 1 Lakeville Transmission Line Outage and Glass Fire. The 2020 YTD net
generation is 545.7 GWh, 1.3% above forecast. Steam Field maintenance and idle wells
continues with D-7 back in production. The SEGEP outage is completed as well as the Plant
1 outage for switch repair.

CTs — September operations included 30 actual starts for CT1, of 108 forecasted, bringing
the FYTD total to 92. CT2 had 17 actual starts of 26 forecasted, with the FYTD total at 49.
Two forced outages occurred during the month. CT1’s outage was due to the compartment
fan, and battery failure. CT2 also experienced a forced outage due to the temperature and
vibration sensors. There were no planned outages.
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Hydro — New Spicer Meadows (NSM) storage is currently at 106,475 acre-feet. NCPA
purchased 2,000 acre-feet of water from Utica Water & Power Agency (UWPA) through the
water-for-power program for October through November. NSM was offline for 13 days in
September due to a PG&E maintenance outage at Salt Springs. During the month there was
also two PG&E PSPS events. For the first time in history, the USFS closed the forest
including all campgrounds, day use, trails, etc. due to the high fire danger. NCPA submitted
a special use permit application for the McKays Sediment Removal Beneficial Reuse
Project. FERC delegated their authority to Hydro staff for dam inspections. Beaver Creek
and North Fork Diversion Dams have been drained for debris removal and annual
maintenance. October priorities include Collierville dual outage and McKays trashrack
cleaning, Collierville Unit 1 maintenance outage, and the McKays 17kV fire hardening, to be
scheduled.

20. Planning and Operations Update —

- NCPA Renewables RFP — Staff is seeking member feedback regarding interest in
projects. The current projects in which Members have expressed interest include: 1)
Glover Solar, 2) Avangrid Stagecoach, 3) Calpine Geysers, 4) ORMAT Geo, and 5)
OCID. Review of additional proposals is currently underway.

- 2021 Annual RA Filings Due October 31, 2020 — Please send RA information to staff
for the annual filings due.

- SCP Services Agreement has been fully executed — Integration is underway.

- SFWPA negotiations are underway again with the PPA review, and possible
development of a third phase agreement.

- Strategic Planning effort is continuing with Member meetings to discuss the next 5
year Strategic Plan. The formal plan will be brought back to the Facilities Committee
for discussion, and a recommendation for Commission approval.

- Glover Solar Project PPA is under negotiations with Samsung.

- COVID-19 Update — NCPA Dispatch and Scheduling continue with dual operations.

21. Next Meeting — The next regular Facilities Committee meeting is scheduled for November
4, 2020.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 12:30 pm by the Committee Chair.
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September 30, 2020 Financial Report (Unaudited)
October 21, 2020

Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval by all members

NOTICE:

The disbursements of the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) for the month reported
herein, will be approved at the October 29, 2020 meeting of the NCPA Commission. The
following page is a summary of those disbursements.

Prior to the Chairman’s call to order, the Assistant Secretary to the Commission will, upon
request, make available for review the detailed listing of those disbursements.

The report of budget vs. actual costs and the unaudited September 30, 2020 financial reports
are also included.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
The financial report would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the

physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 of the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

RqAN DY S. HOWARD

General Manager

Attachments: (1)
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NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
and ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Schedule of Disbursements

(Unaudited)

For the Month of September 2020

Operations:
Geothermal
Hydroelectric
CT#1 Combustion Turbines
CT#2 STIG
Lodi Energy Center
NCPA Operating

Total

$ 1,311,581
3,017,425
325,900
804,645
6,389,450
48,099,545

$ 59,948,546




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 25%
This Actual Year FY 2021
Month To-Date Budget % Used
GENERATION RESOURCES
NCPA Plants
Hydroelectric
Other Plant Cost $ 1,478,896 $ 4,243,235 $ 20,872,106 20%
Debt Service (Net) 2,782,355 8,347,066 33,388,263 25%
Annual Budget Cost 4,261,251 12,590,301 54,260,369 23%
Geothermal
Other Plant Cost 2,631,811 7,148,684 30,610,931 23%
Debt Service (Net) 412,538 1,237,615 4,950,461 25%
Annual Budget Cost 3,044,349 8,386,299 35,561,392 24%
Combustion Turbine No. 1 615,771 1,669,164 7,883,578 21%
Combustion Turbine No. 2 (Stig)
Fuel and Pipeline Transport Charges 379,164 561,564 910,006 62% (a)
Other Plant Cost 222,538 716,998 2,252,911 32% (a)
Debt Service (Net) 402,180 1,206,540 4,826,162 25%
Annual Budget Cost 1,003,882 2,485,102 7,989,079 31%
Lodi Energy Center
Fuel 2,136,219 6,972,254 32,955,703 21%
Other Plant Cost 1,589,735 5,447,408 33,571,562 16%
Debt Service (Net) 2,168,653 6,505,959 26,023,835 25%
Annual Budget Cost 5,894,607 18,925,621 92,551,100 20%
Member Resources - Energy 4,117,054 17,273,637 60,055,852 2%% (b)
Member Resources - Natural Gas 334,159 1,038,065 2,442,174 43% (c)
Western Resources 3,311,828 6,331,671 29,869,636 21%
Market Power Purchases 2,649,447 8,762,922 27,422,650 32% (d)
Load Aggregation Costs - CAISO 71,436,966 162,202,229 250,995,102 65% (e)
Net GHG Obligations - 133,440 - N/A
96,669,314 239,798,451 569,030,932 42%
TRANSMISSION
Independent System Operator
Grid Management Charge 619,805 1,961,977 2,674,231 73% )}
Wheeling Access Charge 8,054,747 23,978,160 112,666,513 21%
Ancillary Services 1,179,611 3,821,966 3,750,031 102% (9)
Other ISO Charges/(Credits) (1,304,968) (8,571,537) 935,326 -816%  (h)
8,549,195 21,190,566 120,026,101 18%
MANAGEMENT SERVICES
Legislative & Regulatory
Legislative Representation 121,328 400,699 - 2,180,121 18%
Regulatory Representation 43,863 163,213 715,280 23%
Western Representation 45,147 141,749 716,059 20%
Customer Programs 22,836 62,417 476,652 13%
Judicial Action 81,271 81,271 460,000 18%
Power Management
System Control & Load Dispatch 460,421 1,672,016 6,765,755 23%
Forecasting, Planning, Prescheduling & Trading 213,953 689,857 2,934,342 24%
Industry Restructuring & Regulatory Affairs 29,460 90,578 425,152 21%
Contract Admin, Interconnection Svcs & External Affairs 74,847 253,545 999,897 25%
Gas Purchase Program 5,313 16,888 81,738 21%
Market Purchase Project 7,006 24,030 117,239 20%

Management Services continued on next page




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF

REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 25%
This Actual Year FY 2021
Month To-Date Budget % Used
Energy Risk Management 14,574 55,459 229,845 24%
Settlements 50,754 171,676 923,646 19%
Integrated Systems Support 9,806 80,838 266,055 30% (i)
Participant Pass Through Costs 21,951 157,693 1,590,641 10%
Support Services 45,613 263,311 - N/A
1,248,143 4,225,240 18,882,422 22%
TOTAL ANNUAL BUDGET COST 106,466,652 265,214,257 707,939,455 37%
LESS: THIRD PARTY REVENUE
Plant ISO Energy Sales 10,341,215 36,007,402 105,258,271 34% 0]
Member Resource |ISO Energy Sales 2,665,368 8,825,689 26,421,509 33% (k)
Member Owned Generation ISO Energy Sales 9,005,385 27,380,778 69,679,260 39% 0]
Customer Owned Generation ISO Energy Sales 4,043 23,554 -
NCPA Contracts 1ISO Energy Sales 1,852,993 5,317,314 18,914,977 28%
Western Resource Energy Sales 2,652,356 9,838,582 17,480,649 56% (m)
Load Aggregation Energy Sales 23,027,719 54,990,686 - N/A
Ancillary Services Sales 435,960 1,192,544 3,988,092 30%
Transmission Sales 9,198 27,594 110,376 25%
Western Credits, Interest and Other Income 35,070,384 49,777,564 34,901,791 143% (n)
85,064,621 193,381,707 276,754,925 70%
NET ANNUAL BUDGET COST TO PARTICIPANTS $ 21,402,031 § 71,832,550 $ 431,184,530 17%

(a) Increase in costs due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. CT2 is at 493% of budgeted MWhs at 9/30/20. Fuel costs, CA ISO
charges, and variable costs have increased as a result of increased generation.

(b) Variance caused by greater than anticipated ISO energy purchases.
() Variance caused by greater than anticipated natural gas for Lodi, Healdsburg, Ukiah, and Gridley.
(d) Increase due to higher than anticipated market purchases and price per Mwh.

(e) Increase due to unbudgeted costs related to East Bay Community Energy and San Jose Community Energy. Additionally, the CAISO market
experienced historically high day-ahead market prices for several days during the August heatwave. Prices peaked at nearly $1000/MWh. Typical
prices are around $35/MWh. In addition, NCPA load quantities also increased in response to the heatwave.

(f) Increase due to unbudgeted costs related to East Bay Community Energy and San Jose Community Energy. Additionally, GMC rates are
volumetric and charges went above budget with increased load quantities during August heatwave.

Increase due to unbudgeted costs related to East Bay Community Energy and San Jose Community Energy. Additionally, during the
August heatwave the CAISO faced significant deficiencies in operating reserves (Ancillary Services). This scarcity drove up the cost of Ancillary
Services well above typical rates.

-~

(9

Increase due to unbudgeted revenues related to East Bay Community Energy, San Jose Community Energy, and NCPA Pool. Additionally, during
system events like what was experienced in August, the CAISO must increase out-of-market actions, which when taken will result in unanticipated
costs. CAISO dispatched as much system capacity as possible, which will result in increased neutrality costs.

(h

=

Variance caused by FY21 software maintenance contract costs paid in-full during July. Variance will decrease throughout the year.

(i
{

=

Much of NCPA's generation fleet was called on by CAISO to generate during the August heatwave when prices were extremely high. Prices
peaked at nearly $1000/Mwh.

=

(k) Much of NCPA’s generation fleet was called on by CAISO to generate during the August heatwave when prices were extremely high. Prices

peaked at nearly $1000/Mwh.

Z

Member's generation fleet was called on by CAISO to generate during the August heatwave when prices were extremely high. Prices
peaked at nearly $1000/Mwh.

(I

=

(m) Western's generation fleet was called on by CAISO to generate during the August heatwave when prices were extremely high. Prices
peaked at nearly $1000/Mwh.

(n) Variance caused by unbudgeted revenue from customers and greater than anticipated member contract sales.



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable

Participants

Other
Interest receivable
Inventory and supplies
Prepaid expenses

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Interest receivable
TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS

ELECTRIC PLANT
Electric plant in service
Less: accumulated depreciation

Construction work-in-progress
TOTAL ELECTRIC PLANT

OTHER ASSETS
Regulatory assets
Preliminary survey and investigation costs
Investment in associated company

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Excess cost on refunding of debt
Pension deferrals
Deferred Outflows - ARO
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

September 30,

2020 2019

(in thousands)

27,815 § 35,854
45,433 59,495
1 2,776
6,494 1,650
294 582
5,937 8,891
735 31
86,709 109,279
49,170 37,106
167,967 171,819
615 840
217,752 209,765
1,494,359 1,506,830
(1,026,445) (1,011,827)
467,914 495,003
- 182
467,914 495,185
225,867 223,577
2 592
265 265
998,509 1,038,663
19,782 30,701
16,936 17,055
61,966 62,075
98,684 109,831

1,097,193 § 1,148,494




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED
September 30,
2020 2019
LIABILITIES (in thousands)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 17,607 § 45,418
Accounts and retentions payable - restricted for construction - 10
Member advances 993 1,579
Operating reserves 20,677 20,260
Current portion of long-term debt 43,745 42,545
Accrued interest payable 7,601 8,663
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 90,623 118,475
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Net pension and OPEB liability 63,003 66,126
Operating reserves and other deposits 131,414 131,831
Interest rate swap liability : 20,799 16,513
Asset Retirement Obligations 67,005 65,523
Long-term debt, net 569,251 616,726
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 851,472 896,719
TOTAL LIABILITIES 942,095 1,015,194
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Regulatory credits 88,060 83,407
Pension and OPEB deferrals 4,737 5,802
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 92,797 89,209
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets (8,116) (11,072)
Restricted 18,373 15,177
Unrestricted 52,044 39,986
TOTAL NET POSITION 62,301 44,091

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION $ 1,097,193 § 1,148,494




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED
For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2020
2020 2019
(in thousands)
OPERATING REVENUES
Participants $ 97,035 § 106,166
Other Third-Party 96,083 64,929
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 193,118 171,095
OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased power 89,883 51,378
Operations 19,198 18,578
Transmission 32,246 67,952
Depreciation 7,576 7,758
Maintenance 5,496 5,874
Administrative and general 4,087 4,166
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 158,486 155,706
NET OPERATING REVENUES 34,632 15,389
NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES
Interest expense (10,056) (10,796)
Interest income (3,064) 204
Other (384) 1,538
TOTAL NON OPERATING EXPENSES (13,504) (9,054)
FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS (19) (122)
REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS 800 (498)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION 21,909 5,715
NET POSITION, Beginning of year 40,392 38,376

NET POSITION, Period ended $ 62,301 $ 44,091
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NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY & ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

AGED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
September 30, 2020

Status Participant / Customer Description Amount
CURRENT $ 6,186,863
PAST DUE:

1-30
31-60
61-90 Calpine Geysers Plant Service Effluent Adj (Mar'18 - Dec'19) 292,665
Calpine Geysers Plant Service Effluent December 2019 15,846
91-120
Over 120 Days
PARTICIPANT and OTHER RECEIVABLES (net) $ 6,495,374

AR FY 2021Sep Rpt 2020
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NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

October 21, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  October 29, 2020

SUBJECT:

Treasurer’s Report for Month Ended September 30, 2020

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

If other, please specify

FROM: Sondra Ainsworth ~<~, QJQ,‘METHOD OF SELECTION:
Treasurer-Controller N/A
Division: Administrative Services
Department: Accounting & Finance
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members Cityof Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake [J
Alameda Municipal Power [ City of Lompoc [J City of Ukiah []
oL Franci;:;ig?(r:;:; O City of Palo Alto [ Plumas-Sierra REC [
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [J Port of Oakland []
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [1 Truckee Donner PUD T[]
City of Healdsburg [ City of Santa Clara [ Other [

SR: 198:20



Treasurer's Report for Month Ended September 30, 2020
October 21, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:
Approval by all members.

BACKGROUND:

In compliance with Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) policy and State of California
Government Code Sections 53601 and 53646(b), the following monthly report is submitted for
your information and acceptance.

Cash — At month end cash totaled $4,211,624 of which approximately $1,498 was applicable to
Special and Reserve Fund Deposits, $4,265 to Debt Service and $4,205,861 to Operations and
other.

The cash balance held at U.S. Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This
cash balance is invested nightly in a fully collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase
agreement.

Investments — The carrying value of NCPA'’s investment portfolio totaled $286,105,020 at month
end. The current market value of the portfolio totaled $289,982,395.

The overall portfolio had a combined weighted average interest rate of 1.457% with a bond
equivalent yield (yield to maturity) of 1.477%. Investments with a maturity greater than one year
totaled $147,938,000. September maturities totaled $23 million and monthly receipts totaled
$81 million. During the month $55 million was invested.

Funds not required to meet annual cash flow are reinvested and separately reported as they
occur.

Interest Rates — During the month, rates on 90-day T-Bills decreased 1 basis point (from 0.11% to
0.10%) and rates on one year T-Bills decreased 1 basis point (from 0.13% to 0.12%).

To the best of my knowledge and belief, all securities held by NCPA as of September 30, 2020
are in compliance with NCPA'’s investment policy. There are adequate cash flow and investment
maturities to meet next month’s cash requirements.

FISCAL IMPACT:
This report has no direct budget impact to NCPA.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical

environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.
Respectfully submitted,

MS\\'”\

NDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachment

SR: 198:20
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Northern California Power Agency

Treasurer's Report

Cash & Investment Balance

September 30, 2020
CASH INVESTMENTS TOTAL PERCENT
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 2,918,886 $ 100,445,605 103,364,491 35.60%
Special Deposits 1,285,199 - 1,285,199 0.45%
Construction 1,776 5,144,799 5,146,575 1.77%
Debt Service 4,265 25,822,688 25,826,953 8.90%
Special & Reserve 1,498 164,691,928 154,693,426 53.28%
$ 4,211,624 § 286,105,020 290,316,644 100.00%
Portfolio Investments at Market Value 289,982,395

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.




Northern California Power Agency

Treasurer's Report

Cash Activity Summary
September 30, 2020
RECEIPTS EXPENDITURES CASH
INTEREST INVESTMENTS INVESTMENTS INTER-COMPANY/ INCREASE/
OPS/CONSTR _ (NOTE B) (NOTEA) _ OPS/CONSTR  (NOTEB)  FUND TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 71,200,655 $ 268,560 $ 9,000,000 $ (25,552,338) $ (29,321,989) $ (24,199,022) $ 1,395,866
Special Deposits 9,722,551 - - (28,128,079) - 18,402,070 (3,458)
Construction - - 709,000 - (5,144,779) - (4,435,779)
Debt Service - 1 1,255 - (6,264,224) 6,263,564 596
Special & Reserve - 113,897 13,221,566 - (14,637,384) (466,612) (1,768,533)
$ 80,923,206 $ 382,458 $ 22,931,821 $ (53,680,417) $ (55,368,376) $ - $ (4,811,308)

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.

NOTE B -Net of accrued interest purchased on investments.



Northern California Power Agency
Treasurer's Report
Investment Activity Summary

September 30, 2020
(NON-CASH) (NON-CASH) INVESTMENTS
SOLD OR DISC/(PREM) GAIN/(LOSS) INCREASE/
PURCHASED MATURED AMORT ON SALE TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 29,321,989 $ (9,000,000) $ 13,485 $ (470) $ - $ 20,335,004
Special Deposits - - - - - -
Construction 5,144,779 (709,000) 48 - - 4,435,827
Debt Service 6,264,224 (1,255) 1,453 - - 6,264,422
Special & Reserve 14,637,384 (13,221,566) (13,252) (470) - 1,402,096
$ 55,368,376 $ (22,931,821) $ 1,734 $ (940) § - $ 32,437,349
Less Non- Cash Activity
Disc/(Prem) Amortization & Gain/(Loss) on Sale (794)
Net Change in Investment --Before Non-Cash Activity $ 32,436,555

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.



Northern California Power Agency
Interest Rate/Yield Analysis

September 30, 2020
WEIGHTED
AVERAGE BOND
INTEREST EQUIVALENT
RATE YIELD

OVERALL COMBINED 1.457% 1.477%
OPERATING FUNDS: 1.714% 1.702%
PROJECTS:

Geothermal 1.676% 1.634%

Capital Facilities 0.073% 0.074%

Hydroelectric 1.125% 1.126%

Lodi Energy Center 0.749% 0.614%

INTEREST RATES
0.50
KEY INTEREST RATES
PRIOR 0.25 +— O
CURRENT _ YEAR e — . —o—

Fed Fds (Overnight) 0.09% 1.90% N " Tix o LS
T-Bills (90da.) 0.10% 1.88% : A ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘
Agency Disc (90da.) 0.09% 1.68% l May Jun ul Aug Sept
T-Bills (1yr.) 0.12% 1.79%
Agency Disc (1yr.) 0.15% 1.59% '
T-Notes (3yr.) 0.15% 1.59%)

—e— T-Bills (90 days) -~ = ~FED FUNE)é_ h
e T-Bills {1 yr) e T-Notes (3 yr)




Northern California Power Agency

Total Portfolio
Investment Maturities Analysis
September 30, 2020
0-7 8-90 91-180 181-270 271-365 15 6-10
Type Days Days Days Days Days Years Years Total Percent

US Government Agencies $ - $ 17,468 $17,344 $ 500 $ 8,490 $ 66,345 $ - $ 110,147 38.18%
Corporate Bonds (MTN) - 1,000 2,500 3,000 5,025 63,230 - 74,755 25.91%
Municipal Bonds - - - 1,000 - 17,113 - 18,113 6.28%
US Bank Trust Money Market 4 - - - - - - 4 0.00%
Commercial Paper 1,813 - - - - - - 1,813 0.63%
Investment Trusts (LAIF) 64,460 - - - - - - 64,460 22.34%
Investment Trusts (CAMP) 1 - - - - - - 1 0.00%
U.S.Treasury Market Acct. * 6,703 - - - - - - 6,703 2.33%
U.S.Treasury Bill/Note - 6,795 4,202 - - - - 10,997 3.81%
Certificates of Deposit 10 - - - 250 1,250 - 1,510 0.52%
Total Dollars $ 72,991 $25,263 $24,046 $4,500 $13,765 $147,938 $0 $ 288,503 100.00%
Total Percents 25.30% 8.76% 8.33% 1.56% 4.77% 51.28%  0.00% 100.00%

Investments are shown at Face Value, in thousands.

* The cash balance held at US Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This cash balance is invested nightly in a fully
collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase agreement. Cash held by Union Bank of California is invested nightly in fully collateralized

U.S. Treasury Securities.



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Detail Report Of Investments

APPENDIX

Note: This appendix has been prepared to comply with

Government Code section 53646.
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A PUBLIC ABENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

October 21, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  October 29, 2020

SUBJECT:

Disposal of Northern California Power Agency Surplus Property

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

Jal

City of Healdsburg

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

FROM: Sondra Ainsworth w METHOD OF SELECTION:
Treasurer-Controller N/A
Division: Administrative Services
Department. Accounting & Finance
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members X Cityof Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake [
Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah [
san F"““ci;‘;:ig?’rxzﬁ O  CityofPaloAlto [  Plumas-SierraREC []
City of Biggs [J City of Redding [ Port of Oakland [J
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [1 Truckee Donner PUD [J
O O O

Other

SR: 214:20



Sale or Disposal of Surplus Property
October 21 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Note and file report by all members for the disposal of the following:
¢ |-shaped cinder blocks from Collierville Powerhouse
¢ Various sized festoon cables from Collierville Powerhouse
e Scrap metal from Lodi Energy Center

BACKGROUND:
The NCPA Policy for the Disposal or Destruction of Surplus Supplies, Materials, or Equipment
requires that such disposal or destruction be reported to the NCPA Commission within 60 days

of such action.

In accordance with that policy the above listed items have been disposed of due to being
obsolete and having no value to the Agency.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This report has no direct fiscal impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California

Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

. \
gm H%)WAi—E_)V‘\

General Manager

Attachments: Declarations of Surplus
Receipts of disposal

SR: 214:20
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NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Receipt Acknowledgment
Sale of Surplus Property

October 5, 2020

Items sold via public sale:

Cash |

Item Description Sale Price
Cinder Blocks $100
Total Received $100

Delivery Acknowledgment:

Delivered By: (NCPA).

Received By: (el oot "y

Date: / /

477 Bret Harte Drive
Murphys, CA 95247

phone  (209) 728-1387
fax (209) 728-1391
web www.ncpa.com
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477 Bret Harte Drive
Murphys, CA 95247

SR AUl R
‘NCPA
’ phone  (209) 728-1387

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY fax (209) 7281391
web www.ncpa.com

Receipt Acknowledgment
Sale of Surplus Property

October 14, 2020

Allied Crane
855 North Parkside Drive
Pittsburg, CA 94565

Items sold via negotiated private sale:

o Four (4) Festoon Cable Spools for $150/total

Delivery Acknowledgment:

O A
Delivered By: (NCPA)‘/A\—/\'Q:}J BN

Received By: (Dennis) 7 A)')}KT
Date: ©- \A A
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i A PUBLIC AGENCY

'NCPA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

/ .
P P
Date: fv )/ W f_% DD

This notice confirms that the Northern California Power Agency has disposed of the following items listed
below:

- Scrap Metal

To the following:

Vendor Name: V&E Hauling / Vincente Gonzales

-

Address/Phone #: 524 E.'ngold Street, Lodi (209) 915-0214

' & o |

/

: 7/ = .
Signature: /e g™ 4

y
Northern California Power Agency

Employee Name: Melfssa Philpot

Signature: WMM (;I;—\ WM

Monies Received for this?
f {n %0
YES (8.1 = ) (50% of total, rounded)

NO



1845 NAvy Dr.

move F09.932-1107
we 209.939-9647

[ IRONSMETAL.

STOCKTON, CA 95206

[ Material Purchase Ticket |

Ticket# 66574

WWWALCOMETALS. GOM ~ STOCKTONG@ALCOMETALS.COM Date: 10/20/2020 10:29:20AM
Customer 1D~ 30660 Scale: ST - Small Scale
VICENTE GONZALEZ Woelghmaster Jose Zamora
525 E HAROLD ST
LODI, CA 95240 Page 1 of 1 :
Tracking 1D VICENTE GONz
Driver's License Number. N7545685
Vehicle Tag: 8J84881
item Gross Tare: Net " Price Total
Ins Cu Wire No.3 - 46% 522081 402.0 m 120.0LB $0.750LB $90.00
ins Cu Wire No.2 - 656% 454,081 430.0 81 24.0LB $1.100LB $26.40
Cu No.2 430081 308.0 m! 320LB $2,000LB $64.00
Motor 570.0 81 380.0 m! 190.0LB . $0.080LB - $15.20
Ticket Total - $195.60
Please Sign Here:
Por Favor Firme Aqul:
PAYMENT HOLD UNTIL 10/23/2020
WEIGHMASTER CERTIFICATE Scale Legend
THIS I8 TO CERTIFY that the following described commodity was welghed, measured, or counted by a 78T - Small Scale

welghmaster, whose signature is on this certificate, who Is a recognized authority of accuracy, as prescribed by
Chapter 7 (commencing with Section 12700) of Divislon 5 of the California Business and Professions Code,
administered by the Division of Measurerment Standards of the California Department of Food and Agriculture.

Legend « "S* = Scals / Seafed Welght “M" = Manually Enterad Welght "A* = Automatic Tare Welght




1815 NAVY DR. | Material Purchase Ticket |

STOCKTON, CA 95206
| e {7 wowe 209-932-1107 Ticket # 66571
IRONSMETAL | ~ 209-939-9647
WAPW, ALEOMETALS . COM = STOCKTONBALCOMETALS.COM Date: 10 /20 12020 g: 35: 48AM
Scale: ST~ Truck Scale

CustomerID - 30660

Weighmaster Luis Medina

VICENTE GONZALEZ
525 E HAROLD ST
LODI, CA 95240 Page 1 of 1
Tracking 1D MARIA

Driver's License Number.  N7545685
Vehicle Tag:

item Gross Tare Net Price Total

Mixed Steel Sc!'ap 9,640,081  7,040.08' 2,600.0LB $150.000NTon  $195.00

Ticket Notes:

S1P 96% 82P 5%

Ticket Total - $195.00

Please Sign Here:

Por Favor Firme Aqui:

WEIGHMASTER CERTIFICATE | scale Legend
T8T- Truck Scale

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the following described commodity was welghed, measured, or counted by a
weighmaster, whose signature is on this certificats, who Is & recognized authority of accuracy, as prescribed by
Chapter 7 (commencing with Sectlon 12700) of Division 6 of the California Business and Professions Code,
administered by the Division of Measurement Standards of the California Department of Food and Agricutture.

Logend « "8" = Scala / Scaled Waight "M = Manually Entered Welght A" = Aufomafic Tare Weight
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NCPA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

October 21, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  October 29, 2020

\'S

SUBJECT: Acceptance of the Annual Financial Statements and Associated Audit Report and

Letters for the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent ~

\
1

If other, please specify

i
FROM:  Monty Hanks ( |\ METHOD OF SELECTION:
Assistant Gene
Manager/CFO N/A
Division: Administrative Services
Department: Accounting & Finance
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members Cityof Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake [
Alameda Municipal Power [ City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah [
San Francisco Bay Area . i '
Rapid Transit L City of Palo Alto [ Plumas-Sierra REC []
City of Biggs [l City of Redding [ Port of Oakland [
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [1 Truckee Donner PUD [
City of Healdsburg [J  City of Santa Clara [J Other [

SR: 200:20



Acceptance of the Annual Financial Statements and Associated Audit Report and Letters
October 21, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Northern California Power Agency staff and the Finance Committee recommend that the
Commission accept and file the Annual Financial Statements and Associated Audit Report
and Letters for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019.

BACKGROUND:

On October 13, 2020, the Finance Committee held a meeting to review the Northern California
Power Agency and Associated Power Corporations (collectively “NCPA”) Financial Statements
and Associated Audit Report and Letters for the years June 30, 2020 and 2019. The audit
partner from NCPA's audit firm, Baker Tilly, reviewed the highlights of the financial statements
and answered questions from the Commitiee. The financial report was given an unmodified or
“clean” opinion by the auditors. No evidence of fraud or illegal acts were noted in the course of
the audit. In addition, the auditors presented a Power Point (copy is attached) which includes
required communications by the auditor. Additional auditor reports include an internal control
letter, negative assurance letters for bond indentures, NCPA’s investment policy, and State
Controller's Minimum Audit Requirements. Copies of these letters are attached to this report.
Nothing of significance was noted in any of the letters.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This financial report for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, which has no direct budget
impact to NCPA, but merely reports on the fiscal impacts for the last fiscal year.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation was reviewed by the Finance Committee on October 13 and was
recommended for Commission approval by a unanimous vote.

Respectfully submitted,

s

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: _

- Financial Statements for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

- Baker Tilly correspondence dated October 6, 2020
o Required communications by the Auditor to those charged with governance
o Compliance with Bond Indentures Letter
o Compliance with Investment Policy Letter
o Compliance with State Controller's Minimum Audit Requirements

- PowerPoint presented to Finance Committee by auditors on October 13, 2020

SR: 200:20



A PUBLIC AGENCY

/INCPA

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

AND

ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Combined Financial Statements Including Independent Auditors’ Report

As of and For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019



@ bakertilly

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Commissioners
Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power Corporations
Roseville, California

We have audited the accompanying combined financial statements of the Northern California Power Agency
and Associated Power Corporations (the “Agency”), as of and for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the combined basic financial
statements of the Agency as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these combined financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these combined financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the combined financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
combined financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the combined financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Agency’s
preparation and fair presentation of the combined financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Agency’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the combined financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the combined financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
combined financial position of the Agency as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the respective changes in
combined financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Baker Tilly US, LLP, trading as Baker Tilly, is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members of which are
separate and independent legal entities. © 2020 Baker Tilly US, LLP

1



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - UNAUDITED)

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

The management of Northern California Power Agency (the Agency or NCPA) offers the following narrative discussion
and analysis of its financial performance for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019. This discussion should be read in
conjunction with the Agency’s combined financial statements and accompanying notes, which follow this section.

BACKGROUND

The Northern California Power Agency is a joint powers agency formed by member public entities under the laws of the
State of California to provide cost effective wholesale power, energy-related services, and advocacy on behalf of public
power consumers. The Agency’s purposes are for purchasing, generating, transmitting, and selling electrical energy and
for providing other related services to its members and customers as each may require. The Agency provides a portion
of certain of its members’ power needs and certain of its members also self-provide and/or purchase power and
transmission from other public and private sources.

NCPA is governed by a Commission comprised of one representative for each member. The Commission is responsible
for the general management of the affairs, property, and business of the Agency. Under the direction of the General
Manager, the staff of the Agency is responsible for providing various administrative, operating and planning services
for the Agency.

The Agency's project construction and development programs have been individually financed by project revenue bonds
that are collateralized by the Agency's assignment of all payments, revenues, and proceeds associated with its interest
in each project. Each of the Agency's members may choose which projects it wishes to participate in, and is known as
a "project participant" for each such project. Each project participant has agreed to pay its proportionate share of debt
service and other costs of the related project, notwithstanding the suspension, interruption, interference, or reduction
or curtailment of output from the project for any reason (that is, the take-or-pay member agreements).

Power sales by the Agency to its members for their resale include both sales of power to project participants generated
by operating plants and power purchased from outside sources. Collections for power sales are designed to recover
costs that include budgeted annual operating costs and debt service. Additional amounts for operating reserves or cost
stabilization may be included in collections under the terms of bond indentures. The Agency’s collections for electric
service are not subject to the regulatory jurisdiction of the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) or the Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC). Rather, the Agency’s collections are established annually in connection with its
budget, which is approved by its governing Commission.

Various legal and tax considerations caused the Agency to provide that separate not-for-profit corporations should be
delegated by the Agency to own the geothermal electrical generating projects undertaken by the Agency ("the
Associated Power Corporations"). The Associated Power Corporations, consisting of Northern California Municipal
Power Corporation Nos. Two and Three, have delegated to the Agency the authority to construct, operate, and manage
their respective geothermal plants and related assets. The Agency, in return for financing the costs of acquisition and
construction, acquires all the capacity and energy generated by the plants.

Because the Agency is a separate, special-purpose governmental entity that serves its participating members, who are
also the Agency’s principal customers, the net results of operations flow through to its participating members as either
net revenues or net expenses.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - UNAUDITED)

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The following is a summary of the Agency’s combined financial position and results of operations for the years ended
June 30, 2020, 2019, and 2018.

June 30,
Condensed Statement of Net Position (in thousands)
2020 2019 2018 (Restated)

Assets and Deferred Outflows of
Resources
Current assets S 184,673 S 143,548 S 162,075
Non-current assets 148,482 169,127 147,738
Electric plant, net 474,821 502,479 531,337
Other assets 226,154 224,403 231,430

Total Assets 1,034,130 1,039,557 1,072,580
Deferred outflows of resources 101,256 112,427 123,280

S 1,135,386 $ 1,151,984 S 1,195,860

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
and Net Position .
Long-term debt, net S 600,636 $ 647,273 S 694,597
Current liabilities 118,860 103,344 95,389
Non-current liabilities 282,347 272,445 277,063

Total Liabilities 1,001,843 1,023,062 1,067,049
Deferred inflows of resources 93,152 90,546 90,743
Net position:

Net investment in capital assets (25,158) (21,468) (30,038)

Restricted 30,407 22,983 29,402

Unrestricted 35,142 36,861 38,704

$ 1,135,386 $ 1,151,984 S 1,195,860
Year ended June 30,

Condensed Statements of Revenues, (in thousands)
Expenses and Changes in Net Position 2020 2019 2018 (Restated)
Operating revenues ) 604,894 S 699,166 $ 562,392
Operating expenses (565,454) (656,115) (510,714)
Net operating revenues 39,440 43,051 51,678
Other expenses (27,329) (20,774) (25,559)
Future refundable costs 2,201 (7,791) (11,797)
Refunds to participants (12,297) (14,178) (10,314)
Change in net position 2,015 308 4,008
Net position, beginning of year 38,376 38,068 34,060
Net position, end of year S 40,391 S 38,376 S 38,068




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - UNAUDITED)

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Long-Term Debt, net
2020 Compared to 2019 - Long-term debt, net decreased $46.6 million or 7.2% in 2020 as a result of scheduled principal

payments of $33.3 million, net premium amortization of $3.5 million, and a net decrease of $2.7 million related to the
following refunding: Capital Facilities Revenue Bonds 2019 Refunding Series A that refunded the Capital Facilities
Revenue Bonds 2010 Refunding Series A. The net decrease also includes a decrease for the net transfer of the current
portion of long-term debt of $7.1 million. For additional detail, refer to Note E - Projects and Related Financing.

2019 Compared to 2018 - Long-term debt, net decreased $47.3 million or 6.8% in 2019 as a result of scheduled principal
payments of $42.3 million, net premium amortization of $2.6 million, and a net decrease of $11.4 million related to the
following refunding: Hydroelectric Project One Revenue Bonds 2019 Refunding Series A that refunded the Hydroelectric
Project One Revenue Bonds 2010 Refunding Series A. These decreases were offset by an increase for the net transfer
of the current portion of long-term debt of $9.0 million. For additional detail, refer to Note E - Projects and Related
Financing.

The following table shows the Agency’s scheduled annual debt service principal payments through FY 2040 as of
June 30, 2020:
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - UNAUDITED)

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

2019 Compared to 2018 - Operating revenues for fiscal year 2019 were approximately $136.8 million or 24.3% higher
than in the prior fiscal year. This was the net result of the following: (1) revenue from non-members of $67.1 million
for their share of energy contracts and transmission costs, (2) higher overall plants’ generation of 3,016,295 MWh
versus 2,368,663 MWh in the prior year, and (2) higher collections for transmission costs due to increased generation.

OPERATING REVENUES BY SOURCES

June 30, 2020

B Particpant Revenue  67%
[l CAISO Energy Sales 15%

[l CAISO A/SRevenue 1%

June 30, 2019

" |} Particpant Revenue 53%

[l CAISO Energy Sales 26%
[l CAISO A/SRevenue 1%

June 30, 2018

[l Particpant Revenue  68%
[l CAISO Energy Sales 24%

[l CAISO A/SRevenue 1%

[l Other Revenues 18% [B Other Revenues 20% [§ Other Revenues 7%

Operating Expenses
2020 Compared to 2019 - Operating expenses were $565.5 million in FY 2020, a decrease of $90.7 million from FY 2019.

Purchased power expense was $74.5 million lower in 2020 primarily due to decreased energy purchased to fulfill energy
requirements for member and non-member participants. Operations expense decreased $28.2 million primarily due
to decreased fuel usage for the LEC and water costs for Hydro (see Operating Revenues). Maintenance expenses were
$5.4 million higher than in FY 2020 primarily due to forced outages at LEC, CT1, Hydro and GEO resulting in higher plant
maintenance costs. Additionally, the increase in transmission costs of $4.1 million was due to increases in wheeling
access charges.

2019 Compared to 2018 - Operating expenses were $656.1 million in FY 2019, an increase of $145.4 million from FY
2018. Purchased power expense was $74.3 million higher in 2019 primarily due to increased energy purchased to fulfill
energy requirements for member and non-member participants. Operations expense increased $22.4 million primarily
due to increased fuel usage for the LEC and water costs for Hydro (see Operating Revenues). Maintenance expenses
were $5.3 million higher than in FY 2019 due to increased plant maintenance project costs necessitated from increased
generation. Additionally, the increase in transmission costs of $43.4 million was due to increased generation from
plants and from new non-member participants.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - UNAUDITED)

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Ratings assigned to the Agency’s outstanding project bonds as of June 30, 2020 are as follows:

Debt Credit Ratings: Standard & Poor’s Fitch Moody’s
Geothermal A-, stable A+, stable Al, stable
Hydroelectric A+, stable AA-, stable Aa3, stable
Capital Facilities A-, stable Not rated Al, stable
Lodi Energy Center (Issue One) A-, stable A, stable Al, stable
Lodi Energy Center (Issue Two) AAA, stable Not rated Aa2, stable

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATED COMPANY

Effective June 2018, the Agency invested a 20% interest in the not-for-profit corporation Hometown Connections, Inc.
(HCI) for $265,000. HCl is a national service corporation that provides consulting, management and metering services
to public power utilities on a national level. HCI has contracted with the Agency to provide monthly accounting services.
This investment is accounted for using the equity method of accounting.

SUMMARY

The management of the Agency is responsible for preparing the information in this management’s discussion and
analysis, combined financial statements and notes to the combined financial statements. Financial statements were
prepared according to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and they fairly portray
the Agency'’s financial position and operating results. The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the
basic financial statements and provide additional financial information.

CONTACTING AGENCY MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our members, investors, and creditors with a general overview of Northern
California Power Agency’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests
for additional information should be addressed to Northern California Power Agency, 651 Commerce Drive, Roseville,
CA 95678.
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COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted
Unrestricted
Investments
Restricted
Unrestricted
Accounts receivable
Participants
Other
Interest receivable
Inventory and supplies
Prepaid expenses
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments
Restricted
Unrestricted
Electric plant in service
Less: accumulated depreciation
Construction work-in-progress
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

OTHER ASSETS
Regulatory assets
Preliminary survey and investigation costs
Investment in associated company
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Excess cost on refunding of debt
Pension and OPEB deferrals
Asset retirement obligations
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

See notes to combined financial statements 13

June 30,

2020 2019
(in thousands)

S 27,103 $ 22,004
85,585 79,058
26,035 21,090
23,512 6,601

311 236
13,212 2,629
1,037 1,360
5,924 8,891
1,954 1,679

184,673 143,548
9,680 16,668
138,802 152,459
1,493,690 1,506,366
(1,018,869) (1,004,069)
- 182
623,303 671,606
225,889 223,703
- 435

265 265
226,154 224,403
1,034,130 1,039,557
22,326 33,271
16,936 17,055
61,994 62,101
101,256 112,427
S 1,135,386 S 1,151,984




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

OPERATING REVENUES
Participants
Other Third-Party
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased power
Operations
Transmission
Depreciation
Maintenance
Administrative and general
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET OPERATING REVENUES
NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES

Interest expense

Interest income

Other

TOTAL NON OPERATING EXPENSES

FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS
REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS
INCREASE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, Beginning of year

NET POSITION, End of year

See notes to combined financial statements
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Years Ended June 30,

2020

2019

(in thousands)

408,120 $ 369,885
196,774 329,281
604,894 699,166
224,052 298,508
71,747 99,990
184,747 180,633
30,958 30,844
32,203 26,836
21,747 19,304
565,454 656,115
39,440 43,051
(39,385) (39,291)
8,668 10,447
3,388 8,070
(27,329) (20,774)
2,201 (7,791)
(12,297) (14,178)
2,015 308
38,376 38,068
40,391 $ 38376




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW-Continued

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

RECONCILIATION OF NET OPERATING REVENUES TO
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile net operating revenues
to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation

CASH FLOWS IMPACTED BY CHANGES IN
Accounts receivable
Inventory, prepaid expense, and unused vendor credits
Operating reserves and other deposits
Member advances
Regulatory credits
Accounts payable and other liabilities
NET CASH FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Years Ended June 30,

2020 2019

(in thousands)

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO STATEMENTS OF

NET POSITION
Cash and cash equivalents - current assets
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted assets

End of year

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS:
Future recoverable/(refundable) costs
Amortization
Interest rate swap change in fair value
Gain/loss on investments

See notes to combined financial statements

$ 39,440 $ 43,051
30,958 30,844
70,398 73,895
(4,109) (118)
2,692 748
4,582 979
(387) 312
3,671 (2,804)
11,266 16,867

S 88,113 S 89,879

S 27,103 S 22,004
85,585 79,058

$ 112,688 $ 101,062

S 2,201 S (7,791)
(7,767) (6,218)
4,355 3,504
45 (663)
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NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

Custodial credit risk for cash deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, the
Agency will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession
of an outside party. Under California Government Code Section 53651, depending on specific types of eligible securities,
a bank must deposit eligible securities posted as collateral with its Agent having a fair value of 110% to 150% of the
Agency’s cash on deposit. All of the Agency’s deposits are either insured by the Federal Depository Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) or collateralized with pledged securities held in the trust department of the financial institutions.

Investments The Agency’s investments are reported at fair value. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are included
in interest income in the Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position.

Accounts Receivable Accounts Receivable consists primarily of amounts due from participants and other governmental
entities related to sales of energy and transmission. June 30, 2020 balance includes estimated insurance receivables of
$6.5'million for turbine replacement at Lodi Energy Center. Amounts are deemed to be collectible and as such, no
allowance for uncollectible accounts has been recorded.

Inventory and Supplies Inventory and supplies consist primarily of spare parts for the maintenance of plant assets and
are stated at average cost.

Restricted Assets Cash and cash equivalents, investments and related accrued interest, which are restricted under terms
of certain agreements, trust indentures or laws and regulations limiting the use of such funds, are included in restricted
assets. When NCPA has restricted assets for specific purposes, and restricted and unrestricted resources are available
for use, it is NCPA’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Electric Plant Electric plant in service is recorded at historical cost. The cost of additions, renewals and betterments are
capitalized; repairs and minor replacements are charged to operating expenses as incurred. The original cost of property
retired, net of removal and salvage costs, is charged to accumulated depreciation. Depreciation expense is computed
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. The provision for depreciation was
approximately 2.0% of the average electric plant in service for the Agency during both 2020 and 2019. Depreciation is
calculated using the following estimated lives:

Generation and Transmission 25 to 42 years
General Plant 5to 25 years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
Transportation Equipment 5 years
Computer and Electronic Equipment 5 years
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NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

Construction Work-In-Progress Construction work-in-progress (CWIP) includes the capitalized cost of land, material,
equipment, labor, interest (net of interest income), certain other financing costs incurred to facilitate the projects and
an allocated portion of general and administrative expenses related to the development of electric plant. In addition,
CWIP ultimately includes costs incurred prior to commencement of commercial operations during the test and start-up
phase of projects.

Regulatory Assets/Credits In accordance with GASB Statement No. 62, the Agency has deferred certain items of expense
and revenue that otherwise would have been charged to operations because it is probable that such items will be
recovered in future years’ operations. For items related to Net Pension and Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB)
Liabilities, the Agency expects to recover these items through participant collections using the actuarially calculated
amounts due as represented in the respective annual and biennial actuarial valuation reports. For other regulatory
items, the Agency expects to recover these items through participant collections over the term of the related debt
obligations it has issued. On an ongoing basis, the Agency reviews its operations to determine the continued applicability
of these deferrals under GASB Statement No. 62.

The items of expense that have been deferred are net pension and OPEB liabilities, asset retirement obligations and
those originally paid from bond proceeds, including depreciation, certain bond amortizations, and interest paid from
bond proceeds. These amounts are recorded to future recoverable amounts. Revenues used to acquire electric plant
through debt issuance have also been deferred to future years. As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Agency had
accumulated regulatory assets, net of regulatory credits, of approximately $137,474,000 and $138,959,000, respectively.

Investment in Associated Company Effective June 2018, the Agency invested $265,000 (20% interest) into Hometown
Connections Inc. (a not-for-profit corporation) (HCI). HCI is a national service corporation that provides consulting,
management and metering services to public power utilities on a national level. This investment is accounted for using
the equity method of accounting.

Debt Related Costs Debt issuance costs are expensed as incurred. Excess costs on refunding of bonds are considered
deferred outflows of resources as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 65 and amortized over the life of the refunding
bonds, or the life of the refunded bonds, whichever is shorter. Amortization is computed using the effective interest
method and included in interest expense.

Compensated Absences Accumulated unpaid compensated absences are accrued as the obligation is incurred.
Compensated absences are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses.

Pensions For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to
pensions and pension expenses, information about the fiduciary net position of the Agency’s CalPERS plan (Plan) and
additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows/inflows of
resources related to OPEB and OPEB expenses, information about the fiduciary net position of the Agency’s California
Employers’ Retirement Benefit Trust (CERBT) Fund and additions to/deductions from Fund’s fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS, the trust administrator. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
Changes in long-term operating reserves for the year ended June 30, 2019, are as follows:
Balance at Balance at

July 1, 2018 Increases Decreases June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

General Operating Reserve S 70,816 S 9536 $ 5119 § 75,233
CRR Collateral & SC Balancing Account 27,180 3,387 983 29,584
Capital Development Reserve 17,089 2,592 4,710 14,971
Power Management Service 7,312 395 4,759 2,948
Transmission Upgrade & GHG Allowances 2,342 3,648 3,675 2,315
Special Fund Reserve 1,500 - - 1,500

S 126,239 $ 19,558 S 19,246 S 126,551

Rates Power sales to participants for their resale include both power generated by operating plants and power
purchased from outside sources. Collection rates for power sales are designed to recover costs that include budgeted
annual operating costs and debt service. Additional amounts for operating reserves or rate stabilization may be included
in collection rates under the terms of bond indentures. During fiscal years 2020 and 2019, no amounts were specifically
collected for rate stabilization.

The Agency’s collection rates for electric service are not subject to the regulatory jurisdiction of the California Public
Utilities Commission (CPUC) or FERC. Rather, the Agency’s rates are established annually in connection with its budget,
which is approved by its governing Commission.

Power, Transmission and Fuel Forward Transactions In the normal course of its business, the Agency is required to
manage loads, resources, and energy price risk on behalf of its members. Consequently, the Agency buys and sells
power, transmission, and fuel in wholesale markets as required. The Agency does not enter into such agreements solely
for trading purposes. All such transactions are normal purchases and sales subject to settlement at the agreed to
contract prices for quantities delivered. While authorized to transact forward purchase contracts for terms of up to five
years, forward contract purchases at fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 were for periods not greater than four years
duration beyond the current fiscal year. In the event of default, undelivered transactions are required to be marked-to-
market subject to the following limitations. [f the Agency, as buyer, is the defaulting entity, the Agency’s termination
settlement amount is capped at the agreed to contract cost for all future undelivered commodities. If the selling
counterparty is the defaulting entity, the seller’s termination settlement is not capped for all future undelivered
commodities. The defaulting entity is also subject to resultant transmission charges, brokerage fees, attorney fees, and
all other reasonable expenses. See Note | - Commitments and Contingencies, Power Purchase Contracts.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments The following methods and assumptions were used by the Agency in estimating its
fair value disclosures for financial instruments:

Cash and Cash Equivalents - The carrying amount reported in the statements of net position for cash and cash
equivalents approximates its fair value.

Investments - The fair values for investments are based on quoted market prices and significant other observable inputs.
See Note D — Fair Value Measurement.
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NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
In November 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations, effective for financial
statements for years beginning after June 15, 2018. This statement requires governments to recognize a liability for

legal obligations to perform future asset retirement activities related to tangible capital assets.

Accounting Pronouncements Effective in Future Fiscal Years

e GASB Statement No. 84 — In January 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. The objective of the
Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial
reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. The Statement originally is effective for the periods
beginning after December 15, 2018, or fiscal year 2020. GASB 95 postponed implementation to periods beginning
after December 15, 2019 or fiscal year 2021. The Agency has not determined the effect of the statement.

e GASB Statement No. 87 —In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of the Statement is to
recognize in the Financial Statements certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as
operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions
of the contract. The Statement originally is effective for the periods beginning after December 15, 2019, or the fiscal
year 2021. GASB 95 postponed implementation to periods beginning after June 15, 2021 or fiscal year 2022. The
Agency has not determined the effect of the statement.

e GASB Statement No. 89 — In June 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before
the End of a Construction Period. The objective of the Statement is (1) to enhance the relevance and comparability
of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2) to simplify accounting
for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. The Statement originally is effective for the
periods beginning after December 15, 2019, or fiscal year 2021. GASB 95 postponed implementation to periods
beginning after December 15, 2020 or fiscal year 2022. The Agency has not determined the effect of the statement.

e GASB Statement No. 90 — In August 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interest. The objective of
the Statement is to improve the consistency and comparability of reporting a government’s majority equity interest
in a legally separate organization and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain
component units. The Statement originally is effective for the periods beginning after December 15, 2018, or fiscal
year 2020. GASB 95 postponed implementation to periods beginning after December 15, 2020 or fiscal year 2022.
The Agency has not determined the effect of the statement.

e GASB Statement No. 91 — In May 2019, GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations. The objective of
the Statement is to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity
in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt
obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. The Statement originally is effective for the periods beginning after
December 15, 2020, or fiscal year 2022. GASB 95 postponed implementation to periods beginning after
December 15, 2020 or fiscal year 2022. The Agency has not determined the effect of the statement.
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NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

e GASB Statement No. 97 — In June 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans — An
Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a Suppression of GASB Statement No. 32. The objectives of
this Statement are to (1) increase consistency and comparability related to the reporting of fiduciary component
units, (2) mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund financial
statements, and (3) enhance the relevance, consistency and comparability of the accounting and financial reporting
for Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation plans. The Statement is effective for the periods
beginning after June 15, 2021, or fiscal year 2022. The Agency has not determined the effect of the statement.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year financial statements to conform to the
current year presentation. Such reclassifications had no effect on net position.

NOTE C -- INVESTMENTS

The Agency is authorized to invest in obligations of the U.S. Government and its agencies and instrumentalities, in
certificates of deposit, commercial paper, banker’s acceptances, repurchase agreements, passbook savings account
demand deposits, municipal bonds, the State Treasurer's LAIF pool, mid-term corporate notes, and in other instruments
authorized by applicable sections of the Government Code of the State of California. The Agency’s investments are
stated at fair value.

The Agency’s investment policy requires investments that assure safety of the principal, liquidity to meet specific
obligations of the Agency when due, and investment quality all in compliance with California State law and the Agency’s
revenue bond indentures. Generally, operating and reserve funds’ investment maturities are limited to one and five
years, except for Geothermal Decommissioning Reserve and debt service reserve funds, which are allowed maturities
up to ten years and fifteen years, respectively.

All securities owned by, or held on behalf of, the Agency are held by either the Agency’s custodian, Union Bank of
California, N.A., or its revenue bond trustee, U.S. Bank Trust, N.A.

The Agency’s investment policy includes restrictions for investments relating to maximum amounts invested as a
percentage of the portfolio and with a single issuer, maximum maturities, and minimum credit ratings.

Credit Risk To mitigate the risk that an issuer will not fulfill its obligation to the investment, the Agency limits investments
in non-federally secured instruments to those rated, at a minimum, “A” rating category or equivalent for long/medium
term notes by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Investments in municipal bonds, corporate bonds,
and certificates of deposit are limited to the top three ratings issued by nationally recognized statistical rating
organizations and all investments must be investment grade. Credit rating ranges and minimum rating requirements for
the Agency’s investments as of June 30, 2020 are listed below:
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NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

Concentration of Credit Risk, June 30, 2019

Reported Percentage
Issuer: Investment Type Amount of Portfolio
(in thousands)
Federal National Mortgage Association Federal Agency S 16,189 8.2%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. Federal Agency 35,728 18.2%
Federal Farm Credit Bank Federal Agency 31,208 15.9%
Federal Home Loan Bank Federal Agency 48,929 24.9%

Interest Rate Risk Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates may adversely affect the fair value
of an investment. The Agency manages its exposure to interest rate risk by following a hold-to-maturity investment
approach for some investments, purchasing a combination of shorter and longer term investments, and by timing cash
flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as
necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. In addition, the Agency periodically rebalances
larger fund portfolios to maintain the appropriate rate of return through market cycles; such rebalances are performed
only in instances when the result of the rebalance transaction is a net gain.

The following tables reflect the carrying and fair values and the weighted average maturity in years for the Agency’s
investment portfolios for fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Investments at June 30, 2020 Witd. Avg
Carrying Fair Maturity
Description Value Value (In years)
(in thousands)
U.S. Agencies S 97,420 $ 98,085 2.29
U.S. Treasury 5,175 5,207 0.50
Municipal Bonds 15,161 15,293 2.88
Corporate Bonds 74,662 77,843 2.67
Certificates of Deposit 1,500 1,601 2.37
TOTAL INVESTMENTS $ 193918 S 198,029
Investments at June 30, 2019 Witd. Avg
Carrying Fair Maturity
Description Value Value (In years)
(in thousands)
U.S. Agencies $ 132,128 S 132,054 2.34
U.S. Treasury 2,323 2,325 0.17
Corporate Bonds 60,984 62,439 3.29
TOTAL INVESTMENTS S 195,435 § 196,818
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NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

The Agency has the following fair value measurements as of June 30, 2020:

Fair Value Using

Quoted prices in Significant
active markets for Significant other unobservable
identical assets observable inputs inputs
June 30, 2020 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Investments by fair value level
Debt Securities
U.S. Agencies S 98,085 S 34,678 S 63,407
U.S. Treasury 5,207 5,207 -
Municipal Bonds 15,293 - 15,293
Corporate Bonds 77,843 - 77,843
Certificates of Deposit 1,601 - 1,601
Total debt securities 198,029 39,885 158,144
Total investments by fair
value level S 198,029 S 39,885 S 158,144
Derivative Instruments by fair
value level
Swap liability instruments S (18,968) S - S (18,968)
Total Derivative
Instruments by fair value
level S (18,968) S - S (18,968)
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NOTE E -- PROJECTS AND RELATED FINANCING

Financing Programs The Agency's project construction and development programs have been individually financed by
project revenue bonds that are collateralized by the Agency's assignment of all payments, revenues, and proceeds
associated with its interest in each project. Each project participant is responsible to pay its proportionate share of
debt service and other costs of the related project, notwithstanding the suspension, interruption, interference,
reduction or curtailment of output from the project for any reason (that is, the take-or-pay member agreements). The
project sales agreements also require project participants to step up their respective obligations in the event of a
default by another project participant.

Balance Balance Current
July 1, 2019 Additions Retirements  June 30, 2020 Portion
Geothermal Project (in thousands)
2009 Series A - Original Issue Amount $35,610
Serial, 4.00-5.50% through 2025 S 2675 § - S 2,675 S - S -
2012 Series A - Original Issue Amount $12,910
Term, 2.289% due 2023 4,945 - 1,375 3,570 1,405
2016 Series A - Original Issue Amount $17,530
Term, 1.670% due 2024 16,900 - 370 16,530 3,190
Total Geothermal Project 24,520 - 4,420 20,100 4,595
Hydroelectric Project
2008 Refunding Series A - Original Issue Amount
$85,160
Term, adjustable rate-weekly reset, due 2033 85,160 - 1,520 83,640 2,165
2012 Refunding Series A - Original Issue Amount
$76,665
Serial, 5.00% through 2033 76,665 - - 76,665 -
2012 Refunding Series B - Original Issue Amount
$7,120
Serial, 4.32% through 2025 7,120 - - 7,120 -
2018 Refunding Series A — Original Issue Amount
568,875
Serial, 5.00% through 2025 68,875 - 8,885 59,990 10,730
2018 Refunding Series B - Original Issue Amount
$1,340
Serial, 4.32% through 2025 1,340 - 1,340 - -
2019 Refunding Series A - Original Issue Amount
$39,250 39,250 - 940 38,310 7,830
Serial, 4.00-5.00% through 2025
Add: Unamortized Premium, net 16,528 - 2,815 13,713 -
Total Hydroelectric Project S 294,938 S - $ 15,500 $ 279,438 $20,725
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Debt service requirements for each of the next five years and in five-year cumulative increments thereafter as of June 30,
2020:

Notes from Direct
Revenue Bonds Placements
Principal Interest Principal Interest Total
(in thousands)
2021 S 28,665 S 34,187 $§ 11,745 S 1,199 $ 75,796

2022 31,395 32,273 12,005 951 76,624

2023 32,990 30,320 11,505 698 75,513

2024 38,705 28,157 11,005 464 78,331

2025 40,400 26,159 11,250 235 78,044

2026-2030 161,425 101,825 - - 263,250

2031-2035 161,295 52,877 - - 214,172

2036-2040 72,940 16,493 - - 89,433

Add: Unamortized Bond Premium 15,721 - - - 15,721

$ 583536 S 322,291 S 57,510 S 3,547 S 966,884

Interest includes interest requirements for fixed rate debt at their stated rate and variable rate debt covered by interest
rate swaps at their fixed swap rate.

Changes in long-term debt obligations for the year ended June 30, 2020, are as follows:

Balance at Balance at Due Within
July 1, 2019 Increases Decreases June 30, 2020 One Year
(in thousands)

Revenue bonds S 603,790 $ 20,450 $ 56,425 S 567,815 S 28,665
Notes from direct placements 59,875 - 2,365 57,510 11,745
Add: Unamortized Premium,

net 16,948 2,288 3,515 15,721 -
Total S 680,613 S 22,738 $ 62,305 S 641,046 S 40,410

The Agency’s outstanding notes from direct placements of $57,510,000 contain provisions that in an event of default,
outstanding amounts become immediately due if (1) the Agency is unable to pay the principal or interest when due,
(2) files bankruptcy or becomes insolvent, or (3) S&P issues a downgrade below “BBB-.”

The Agency’s outstanding revenue bonds of $567,815,000 contain provisions that in the event of a participant default,
the project entitlement percentage of each non-defaulting project participant will increase on a prorated basis up to a
maximum of 25% for Hydroelectric, Geothermal and Capital Facilities projects and 35% for Lodi Energy Center project.

Redemption Provisions As set forth in the bond indentures, the term bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity
in varying amounts at specific dates. At the option of the Agency, the bonds are also subject to early redemption at
specific redemption prices and dates.
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Geothermal Project In addition to a federal geothermal leasehold, steam wells, gathering system and related facilities,
the project consists of two electric generating stations (Plant 1 and Plant 2) with combined 165 MW (nameplate rating)
turbine generator units utilizing low temperature geothermal steam; associated electrical, mechanical and control
facilities; a heat dissipation system; a steam gathering system, a transmission tap-line, and other related facilities.
Geothermal steam for the project is derived from the geothermal property, which includes well pads, access roads,
steam wells and re-injection wells.

Hydroelectric Project The Agency contracted to finance, manage, construct, and operate Hydroelectric Project Number
One for the licensed owner, Calaveras County Water District. In exchange, the Agency has the right to the electric output
of the project for 50 years from February 1982. The Agency also has an option to purchase power from the project in
excess of the District's requirements for the subsequent Federal Energy Regulatory Commission project license term of
30 to 50 years.

As part of a refinancing plan in November 2004, the Agency entered into two forward starting interest rate swaps in an
initial notional amount of $85,160,000 and $1,574,000. Payments under the swap agreements with Citigroup Financial
Products, Inc. began on April 2, 2008. To complete the refinancing transaction and realize the debt service savings under
the 2004 swap agreement, on April 2, 2008 the Agency completed a bond refunding of 2023 to 2032 maturities of the
1998 Hydroelectric Refunding Series A bonds. These fixed rate bonds were refinanced through the issuance of tax-
exempt 2008 Hydroelectric Refunding Series A ($85,160,000) bonds and taxable 2008 Hydroelectric Refunding Series B
($3,165,000) bonds. Both issues were variable interest rate bonds bearing interest at weekly interest rates, payable
semi-annually on July 1 and January 1 each year.

To support this financing, the Agency entered into two irrevocable direct pay letter of credit agreements with Citibank
that have since expired, being substituted with letters of credit with the Bank of Montreal in 2014. On April 30, 2019,
the Agency terminated the 2008 Hydroelectric, Series B swap with Citigroup, and on May 14, the outstanding principal
of $910,000 on the 2008 Hydroelectric, Series B bonds was called for redemption. On June 24, 2019 the agency
completed a Letter of Credit substitution for the 2008 Hydroelectric, Series A bonds replacing the Bank of Montreal with
Bank of America. The Letter of Credit expires on June 21, 2024.

The payment of principal and interest on the outstanding 2008 Hydroelectric Refunding Series A ($85,160,000) bonds
are not covered by any financial guaranty insurance policies. This 2008 Hydroelectric Refunding and the associated
interest rate swaps are estimated to have reduced project debt service by $11.8 million over the life of the debt providing
the Agency with an estimated economic gain (difference between the present values of the old and new debt service
payments) of approximately $5.9 million.

The remaining swap for the 2008 Hydroelectric Refunding Series A ($85,160,000) is a separate pay-fixed, receive-variable
interest rate swap to produce savings or to result in lower costs over the life of the transaction than what the Agency
would have paid using fixed-rate debt. While the swap is a derivative instrument and carries additional risks, the
Agency’s swap policy and favorable negotiations have helped to reduce such risks.
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Changes in interest rate swap liability for the year ended June 30, 2019, are as follows:
Balance at Balance at

July 1, 2018 Increases Decreases June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Interest rate swap liability ~ $ 11,252 S 3,361 $ - S 14,613

The total fair value of outstanding swap instruments was a net liability of $18,968,000 and $14,613,000 at June 30, 2020
and June 30, 2019, respectively. These amounts are reported as a non-current liability. The interest rate swaps
beginning in FY 2013 are both ineffective hedges and considered investment derivative instruments. The change in fair
value was $4.4 million and $3.5 million for years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively and are recorded as interest
expense in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. The net settlement payments of interest
on these investment derivative instruments total $2.0 million and $1.6 million, which is recorded as interest expense in
the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for FY 2020 and FY 2019, respectively. The value of
the swaps noted above reflects the estimated fair value of the swaps at June 30, 2020 and 2019 as determined by the
Agency’s financial advisor. The fair value of the swaps will change due to notional amount, amortizations, and interest
rate changes.

The interest rate swap exposes the Agency to basis risk should the relationship between LIBOR and SIFMA converge,
changing the synthetic rate on the bonds. If a change occurs that results in the rates moving to convergence, the
expected cost savings of the swap may not be realized. The Agency is exposed to interest rate risk on its pay-fixed,
receive variable interest rate swaps. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the
fair values of the Agency’s financial instruments or cash flows. As the LIBOR or SIFMA swap index decreases, the Agency’s
net payment on swaps increases. In addition, the Agency is exposed to interest rate risk if the counterparty to the swap
defaults or if the swap is terminated. The Agency is also exposed to market access risk, the risk that it will not be able
to enter credit markets or that credit will become more costly. The Agency’s financial rating is tied to the credit strength
of the major participants of the specific project for which each financial instrument is issued. The Agency is also exposed
to market access risks caused by disruptions in the municipal bond market.

To mitigate the potential for credit risk, the swap counterparties are required by the agreement to post collateral should
the fair value exceed certain thresholds as shown above. At June 30, 2020, credit ratings of the counterparties to the
swaps were as follows:

Swap Counterparty & Agency’s Insurer Standard & Poor’s Moody's
Citigroup Financial Products Inc. A+ Aa3

National Public Finance Guarantee formerly MBIA
{the Agency’s insurer)

NR Baa2
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Geothermal Plant Decommissioning

The Agency developed the geothermal project (the “Geothermal Project”) located on federal land in certain areas of
Sonoma and Lake Counties, California (the “Geysers Area”). In addition to the geothermal leasehold, wells, gathering
system and related facilities, the Geothermal Project consists of two electric generating stations (Plant 1 and Plant 2),
with combined 165 MW (nameplate rating) turbine generator units utilizing low pressure, low temperature geothermal
steam, associated electrical, mechanical and control facilities, a heat dissipation system, a steam gathering system, a
transmission tapline and other related facilities. Geothermal steam for the project is derived from the geothermal
property, which includes wellpads, access roads, steam wells and reinjection wells.

Steam for NCPA’s geothermal plants comes from lands in the Geysers Area, which are leased by NCPA from the federal
government. NCPA operates these steam-supply areas. Operation of the geothermal plants at high generation levels,
together with high steam usage by others in the same area, resulted in a decline in the steam production from the steam
wells at a rate greater than expected. As a result, NCPA partnered with other geothermal operators in the Geysers Area
to finance and construct the Southeast Geysers Effluent Pipeline Project, which was completed in September 1997 and
began operating soon thereafter. With the reduced rate of steam production decline, the useful life of the plant and
associated tangible assets is projected through fiscal year 2059.

Under terms of the federal geothermal leasehold agreements, which became effective August 1, 1974, the leasehold
had a 10-year primary term with provision for renewal as long thereafter as geothermal steam is produced or utilized,
but not longer than 40 years. At the expiration of that period, if geothermal steam was still being produced, NCPA had a
preferential right to renew the leasehold for a second term. In 2013, NCPA renewed the leasehold. The leasehold also
requires NCPA to remove its leasehold improvements including the geothermal plants and steam gathering system when
and if NCPA abandons the leasehold. Additionally, the United States Department of the Interior and Bureau of Land
Management State issued the License for Electric Power Plant Site Utilizing Geothermal Resources. The license requires
that NCPA remove all structures, machinery, and other equipment and restore the land within one year following the
termination of the license.

The Agency authorized a decommissioning study for the Geothermal Project, and Black and Veatch provided that study
to NCPA in December 2016. The study included detailed cost estimates totaling approximately $59.3 million (figures
compiled prior to fiscal year 2016} for all retirement obligation activities. The study also projected the costs through
2020 using an Extrapolation Escalation Methodology for the following categories: 1) direct labor and subcontract costs
less salvage value; 2) indirect costs; 3) construction equipment; 4) engineering and construction management; 5) and
contingency. NCPA personnel then calculated the effective change between the escalated 2016 base and 2020 escalated
costs to develop a composite escalation rate and assumed that the escalation rate was applicable evenly for each of the
five years beginning in 2016; the resulting calculated annual escalation factor was 2.26%. The estimated retirement
obligation costs for years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 are $66,285,000 and $64,820,000, respectively. The annual
retirement expense for years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 are $1,580,795 and $1,544,165, respectively.

NCPA has been collecting monies to pay the expected decommissioning costs since 2007 and holds $22.5 million in a
designated reserve for such purpose as of June 30, 2020. The initial ARO recognition included a reclassification of that
reserve from a liability to the members to a deferred inflow that will be reduced as the decommissioning costs are funded
in the future.
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The estimated retirement obligation costs for the LEC well plugging is $182,773 with an annual retirement obligation
expense of $7,975 for year ended June 30, 2020. The estimated retirement obligation costs for the LEC well plugging is
$178,173 with an annual retirement obligation expense of $7,756 for year ended June 30, 2019. The estimated
retirement obligation costs for the Capital Facilities Project well plugging is $160,579 with an annual retirement
obligation expense of $7,006 for year ended June 30, 2020. The estimated retirement obligation costs for the Capital
Facilities Project well plugging is $156,538 with an annual retirement obligation expense of $6,814 for year ended
June 30, 2019.

Currently there are no assets restricted for payment of the injection well closures. To meet the legally required funding
and assurance provisions of the injection well closures, NCPA files with the EPA annually. This filing includes a financial
test to demonstrate financial assurance, as specified in subpart F of 40 CFR part 144.

NOTE G -- RETIREMENT PLAN
General Information about the Pension Plans

Plan Descriptions The Agency provides a defined benefit retirement plan to all eligible employees under the Public
Employees’ Retirement System (PERS). The Plan is an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). CalPERS issues publicly available reports
that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership
information that can be found on the CalPERS website.

Benefits Provided CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and
death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of
credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. In 2012, the Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA)
become law that implemented new benefit formulas and final compensation period, as well as new contribution
requirements for new employees hired on or after January 1, 2013 who meet the definition of new member under
PEPRA. Employees hired prior to January 1, 2013, and those new employees not meeting the PEPRA definition of new
member, are considered classic members.
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Net Pension Liability - The Agency’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the total pension liability, less the
pension plan’s fiduciary net position. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured at prior year end, using annual
actuarial valuations as of the previous year end and rolled forward to the measurement date, using standard update
procedures. A summary of principal assumptions and methods used to determine the net pension liability is shown
below.

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liabilities as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 were determined using the following
actuarial assumptions:

2020 2019

Valuation Date June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017
Measurement Date June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Entry-Age Normal
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.15% 7.15%

Inflation 2.75% 2.75%

Payroll Growth 3.00% 3.00%

Projected Salary Increase 2.75%-8.50% (1) 2.75%-8.50% (1)

Investment Rate of Return 7.375% (2) 7.5% (2)

Mortality (3) (3)

(1) Depending on age and service.

(2) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation.

(3) Derived using CalPERS' specific membership data with projected on-going mortality improvement using Scale
BB published by the Society of Actuaries.

Discount Rate The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15% for the Plan. To determine
whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for the plan, CalPERS stress tested
plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate.
Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run out of assets. Therefore, the current 7.15% discount rate is adequate
and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not necessary. The long term expected discount rate of 7.15% will
be applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF). The stress test results are presented in a detailed
report called “GASB Crossover Testing Report” that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under the GASB 68 section.

According to Paragraph 30 of Statement 68, the long-term discount rate should be determined without reduction for
pension plan administrative expense. The 7.15% investment return assumption used in this accounting valuation is net
of administrative expenses. Administrative expenses are assumed to be 15 basis points. An investment return excluding
administrative expenses would have been 7.30%. For the measurement year ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, using this
lower discount rate resulted in a slightly higher total pension liability and net pension liability. This difference was
deemed immaterial to the agent multiple-employer plan.
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For measurement period ending June 30, 2019:

Asset Class

Global Equity
Private Equity
Fixed Income

Liquidity
Real Estate

Inflation Assets

Other

1 An expected inflation of 2.0% used for this period

2

An expected inflation of 2.9% used for this period

For measurement period ending June 30, 2018:

Asset Class

Global Equity
Private Equity
Fixed Income

Liquidity
Real Estate

Inflation Assets

Other

Real Return Real Return

Strategic Allocation Years 1-101 Years 11+
50.00% 4.80% 5.98%
8.00% 6.30% 7.23%
28.00% 1.00% 2.62%
1.00% 0.00% -0.92%
13.00% 3.75% 4.93%
0.00% 0.77% 1.81%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Real Return Real Return

Strategic Allocation Years 1-10? Years 11+2
49.00% 4.80% 5.98%
8.00% 6.30% 7.23%
22.00% 1.00% 2.62%
3.00% 0.00% -0.92%
12.00% 3.75% 4.93%
6.00% 0.77% 1.81%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

3 An expected inflation of 2.0% used for this period
4 An expected inflation of 2.9% used for this period
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Increase/(Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Description Liability Net Position Liability/(Asset)
Balance at June 30, 2018 S 158,591,178 S 90,091,516 S 68,499,662
Service cost incurred 3,511,108 - 3,511,108
Interest on total pension liability 10,837,217 - 10,837,217
Differences between actual and expected experience (324,038) - (324,038 )
Change in assumption (4,902,279 ) - (4,902,279 )
Change in benefits - - -
Net Plan to Plan Resource Movement - (226) 226
Contributions — employer - 7,769,425 (7,769,425 )
Contributions — employee - 1,532,206 (1,532,206 )
Net investment income - 7,654,116 (7,654,116 )
Differences between projected and actual earnings
on plan investments - - -
Benefit payments (7,101,870) (7,101,870) -
Administrative expense (140,387 ) 140,387
Other Miscellaneous Income/(Expense) - (266,598 ) 266,598
Net changes 2,020,138 9,446,666 (7,426,528 )
Balance at June 30, 2019 S 160,611,316 S 99,538,182 S 61,073,134

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the Plan, calculated using the discount rate, as well as what the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (6.15% for 2020
and 6.15% for 2019) or 1-percentage point higher (8.15% for 2020 and 8.15% for 2019) than the current rate:

Discount Rate — 1% Current Discount Discount Rate + 1%
2020 (6.15%) Rate (7.15%) (8.15%)
Plan’s Net Pension Liability S 82,947,879 $ 60,981,487 $ 42,702,182
Discount Rate — 1% Current Discount Discount Rate + 1%
2019 (6.15%) Rate (7.15%) (8.15%)
Plan’s Net Pension Liability S 82,076,995 $ 61,073,134 S 43,589,609
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For reporting year ended June 30, 2020, amounts reported as deferred outflows (inflows) of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in future pension expense as follows:

Deferred Outflows/
Measurement Period Ended June 30: {Inflows) of Resources
2020 S 1,289,113
2021 (1,544,350)
2022 209,180
2023 128,244
2024 -
Thereafter -
Total S 82,187

Payable to the Pension Plan At June 30, 2020 and 2019 the Agency did not have an outstanding amount of contributions
payable to the pension plan required for the years ended.

NOTE H -- OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)
General Information about the OPEB Plan

The Agency contracts with the CalPERS under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA) for
employee medical insurance. In connection with this plan, the Agency provides medical insurance to all active
employees and their families, as well as all qualified retirees (and spouses), subject to certain limitations. The Agency
has maintained an actuarially based restricted fund for the sole purpose of paying medical insurance premiums for
qualified retired employees (and spouses) participating in the CalPERS medical plan. In 2007, the Agency became a
participant in the CalPERS California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT), a pre-funding OPEB plan, which is an
irrevocable multi-employer trust and plan consisting of an aggregation of single-employer plans, with pooled
administrative and investment functions. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include the net changes in
Fiduciary Net Position by Employer that can be found on the CalPERS website.

The Agency makes its Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) to this OPEB plan annually. The ADC represents the

service cost plus an amortized amount of net OPEB liabilities (NOL). The amortization of NOL is based on a 30 year level
dollar amount on a “closed” basis. There are 25 years remaining as of the measurement date of June 30, 2018.
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To mitigate the growing OPEB unfunded accrued liability, the Agency implemented a Long-Term Funding Plan for the
NCPA Retiree Medical Plan which includes: 1) establish a goal to obtain a minimum funding level of 80% within 15 years
and confirm the policy of funding 100% or more of the ARC each year; 2) reduce actuarial liability by developing a cap
for health care premiums going forward; 3) shorten the amortization period used in the actuarial calculations from 28
years to 15 years; 4) consider additional funding sources for increased funding of the ARC, including further budget
reductions or new revenues (from members or new services/customers); and 5) conduct new actuarial studies on a
biennial basis as required and review the updated results with the Finance Committee, who will make recommendations
for revision to the Commission as needed.

The Agency has a budget policy that mandates an annual reconciliation of budgeted versus actual OPEB costs. The policy
requires that positive budget variances are contributed as payments against the unfunded liability at fiscal year end.
Additionally, effective 1/1/2019, NCPA created a third tier level for OPEB for employees hired after that date. Employees
in tier three are eligible for Agency payment of 100% of the CalPERS Kaiser Senior Advantage rate for Sacramento area
(Region 1); Tier 1 and Tier 2 employees are eligible for Agency payment of 90% of the CalPERS Kaiser Family Rate for
Sacramento area. The change will be included in the fiscal year 2020 actuarial valuation update and has no impact to
fiscal year 2019 and will reduce NCPA’s OPEB liability on a going forward basis as the Agency hires future employees.

Net OPEB Liability The Agency’s net liability for the OPEB Plan is measured as the total OPEB liability, less the OPEB
plan’s fiduciary net position. The net OPEB liability of the Plan is measured at prior year end, using annual actuarial
valuations as of the previous year end and rolled forward to the measurement date, using standard update procedures.
A summary of principal assumptions and methods used to determine the net OPEB liability is shown below.
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For measurement period ending June 30, 2019:

Long-Term
Expected Real Rate

Asset Class Target Allocation of Return

Global Equity 59.00% 8.15%

US Fixed Income 25.00% 6.38%

Treasury Inflation-Protected Securities 5.00% 3.72%

Real Estate Investment Trusts 8.00% 7.77%

Commodities 3.00% 5.32%
For measurement period ending June 30, 2018:

Long-Term
Expected Real

Asset Class Target Allocation Rate of Return

Global Equity 57.00% 7.92%

US Fixed Income 27.00% 6.83%

Treasury Inflation-Protected Securities 5.00% 3.95%

Real Estate Investment Trusts 8.00% 7.56%

Commodities 3.00% 5.47%
Changes in the Net OPEB Liability

Increase/(Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Description Liability Net Position Liability/(Asset)

Balance at June 30, 2019 S 36,314,217 S 31,261,362 S 5,052,855
Service cost incurred 1,036,513 - 1,036,513
Interest on total OPEB liability 2,456,709 - 2,456,709
Differences between actual and expected experience (873,781) - (873,781)
Change in assumption 450,018 - 450,018
Change in benefits - - -
Contributions — employer - 4,094,854 (4,094,854)
Contributions — employee - - -
Net investment income - 2,012,435 (2,012,435)
Differences between projected and actual earnings on plan

investments - - -
Benefit payments (1,941,780) (1,941,780) -
Administrative expense - (6,837) 6,837

Net changes 1,127,679 4,158,672 (3,030,993)

Balance at June 30, 2020 S 37,441,896 $ 35,420,034 S 2,021,862
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NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates.
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Plan, as well as what the Plan's net OPEB liability would be if it were
calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the

current healthcare cost trend rates:

Healthcare Costs
Trend Rate + 1%

Healthcare Costs Current Healthcare
Trend Rate - 1% Costs Trend
2020 Rate
Plan’s Net OPEB Liability S (2,089,383) S 2,021,862

$ 7,081,920

Healthcare Costs Current Healthcare Healthcare Costs

Trend Rate - 1%
2019

Costs Trend
Rate

Trend Rate + 1%

Plan’s Net OPEB Liability S 1,345,813

$ 5,052,855

$ 9,688,171

OPEB Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ending June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Agency incurred OPEB expense of $1,057,789 and $1,234,406,
respectively. At June 30, 2020 and 2018, the Agency has deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of

resources related to OPEB as follows:

Deferred Outflows of

Deferred Inflows

2020 Resources of Resources
OPEB contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 3,911,488 ) -
Differences between actual and expected experience - {699,025)
Changes in consumption 360,014 -
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on
plan investments 135,168 (470,075)
Total S 4,406,670 S (1,169,100)

Deferred Outflows of

Deferred Inflows

2019 Resources of Resources
OPEB contributions subsequent to measurement date S 3,674,502 S -
Changes in assumptions - -
Differences between actual and expected experience - -
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on
plan investments - {(679,990)
Total S 3,674,502 $ (679,990)
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AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

Fuel Supply Agreements The Agency has entered into the following agreements to provide natural gas fuel supply for
use in its generation resources:

e A 30-year agreement terminating in October 2023 with various natural gas pipeline management companies under
which the Agency has acquired firm natural gas pipeline transportation capacity in four separate natural gas pipelines
between Alberta, Canada and northern California. The estimated minimum annual natural gas transmission
commitment is approximately $672,000. The Agency’s firm natural gas pipeline transportation capacity is scheduled
by Mercuria Energy Gas Trading, LLC (Mercuria) pursuant to the term and conditions of an Asset Management
Agreement for Pipeline Transportation Capacity that became effective on January 1, 2015.

e  On behalf of the participants in the Combustion Turbine Project Number One and the Capital Facilities project, the
Agency entered into an agreement with EDF Trading North America, LLC (EDF) effective January 1, 2013 to provide
natural gas supply and scheduling, nomination, balancing and settlement services. The contract automatically
renews each year on January 1, unless terminated earlier by six-months written notice by either party.

e The Agency had approximately $5.4 million of gas purchase commitments at June 30, 2020. The commitments,
extending through December 2022, are normal purchases at agreed to prices for fixed quantities of gas.

Western Area Power Administration Base Resource A number of the Agency’s members, who had an aggregate
18.87957% of the Base Resource Contract with the Western Area Power Administration to receive electric power from
the Central Valley Project in California, have assigned their shares to the Agency in order to create a power resource
portfolio for the mutual benefit of participating Agency members. The assignments terminate the earlier of
December 31, 2024 or 60 days after Western approves a reassignment.

Geothermal Royalties Under terms of federal geothermal leasehold agreements, the Agency is required to pay royalties
to the United States (U.S.) on the value of geothermal steam produced. Currently, the effective rate of such royalties is
3.6% of an amount based on the Agency’s monthly weighted average cost of third-party wholesale electricity purchases
made by Agency members participating in the Geothermal Project. The U.S. Department of the Interior, Office of Natural
Resources Revenue maintains the right to periodically review and withdraw their approval or to change this methodology
should operations, market conditions, or Federal regulations change.

CLAIMS AND LITIGATION

California Energy Crisis During 2000 and 2001, California experienced extreme fluctuations in the prices and supplies of
natural gas and electricity in much of the State. While there has been progress in addressing these issues, uncertainty
remains. As a result, no assurance can be given that measures undertaken, together with measures to be taken in the
future, will prevent the recurrence of shortages, price volatility or other energy problems that have adversely affected
California electric utilities in the past. The Agency has settled with the plaintiffs in related litigation, and while the
settlement has been approved by FERC, there are still some claims by others that remain ongoing. Although the Agency
considers these claims to be lacking in merit, no assurance thereof can be given until all proceedings are finally
concluded.

The California Parties have completed the process of reconciling the amounts recorded on the I1SO and PX books with all
the settlements entered into by the California Parties (including the settlement with NCPA). In their April 22, 2020 filing,
the California Parties asserted that no adjustments were needed for NCPA to account for the differences between the
interest owed and interest actually collected on certain escrow accounts. FERC has not yet issued an order accepting
the California Parties” April filing.
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During the period of January 3-12, 2017, severe winter storms caused flooding and mudslides in many California
Counties. As a result of those storms, the Beaver Creek Diversion Dam and McKays Point Reservoir filled with sediment
and debris, and Beaver Creek required emergency dredging after the river flows receded during the summer.
Additionally, much of the Project was inaccessible for weeks as a result of numerous road failures. Repair costs totaled
approximately $2.2 million. Construction was completed in fall 2017. The Agency recovered $1,270,036 from the
project insurance policy in fiscal year 2018. On February 14, 2017, a Presidential Disaster Declaration was issued
including federal disaster assistance. To date the Agency has collected $109,500 in public assistance grants and this
project is in the project-close-out process. NCPA will record additional proceeds in other non-operating revenue in the
fiscal year in which they are received.

On October 23, 2019, a major wildfire (The Kincade Fire) began burning in Sonoma County. The fire burned
approximately 78,000 acres and destroyed approximately 370 structures including homes, commercial properties, and
other minor structures. The Agency’s Geysers geothermal and effluent projects are located in Lake and Sonoma Counties,
and NCPA Geo Plant 1 tripped offline, initiated by a 230kV line protection relay. NCPA was notified that a wild fire was
reported in the area near the Geo facilities. NCPA shut down both units for safety compliance and increased fire
mitigation efforts. On October 25, 2019, Governor Gavin Newsom proclaimed a state of emergency. The Agency seeks
to recover public assistance grants and will record those proceeds in other non-operating revenue in the fiscal year in
which they are received.

In December 2019, a novel (new) coronavirus known as SARS.CoV-2 (COVID-19) was detected in Wuhan, China, causing
outbreaks that have spread globally. The Secretary of Health and Human Services (HHS) declared a public health
emergency on January 31, 2020. The Federal Government, along with State and local governments, has taken preventive
and proactive measures to slow the spread of COVID-19, treat those affected, and accelerate the acquisition of personal
protective equipment. On March 13, 2020, a Presidential National Emergency Declaration was issued including Public
Assistance. In accordance with Section 502 of the Stafford Act, eligible emergency protective measures taken to respond
to the COVID-19 emergency at the direction or guidance of the public health officials’ may be reimbursed under Category
B of Federal Emergency Management Agency’s (FEMA) Public Assistance program. The Agency implemented certain
procedures to mitigate the spread of COVID-19 in accordance with recommendations by the Centers for Disease Control
and Prevention (CDC) and the Placer County Health Department. The Agency has filed a claim to recover costs associated
with these new procedures.

Risk Management The Agency is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to or destruction of
assets, errors and omissions, and on the job injuries of employees. These risks are covered through the purchase of,
property, commercial, directors and officers, and workers compensation insurance, with minimal deductibles. Settled
claims with insurers have not exceeded the commercial liability limits in any of the past three years. During the Agency’s
insurance renewal period in FY 2020, multiple catastrophic California wildfires that occurred over the last few years as
well as fires in 2019 had a significant impact on the liability insurance market in California. In addition, some insurers
have left the market completely while others have reduced capacities and/or excluded wildfire coverage altogether. As
a result, the Agency experienced upward price pressure for liability and property coverage during FY 2020. Wildfire
liability insurance coverage limits decreased from $75.0 million to $35.0 million while premiums for the reduced limits
increased by 45.4%. Property coverage remained comparable to prior year, while premiums increased by 22.7%

In compliance with Senate Bill 901, the Agency has developed and implemented a Wildfire Risk Mitigation Plan at the
Geothermal and Hydroelectric Plants to utilize proactive measures to prevent or limit fires and resulting damages before
they occur.
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Schedule of Changes in the Net
Pension Liability and Related
Ratios Last 10 Measurement
Years *

Total Pension Liability

Service cost
Interest on total pension
liability
Differences between expected
and actual experience

Changes in assumptions

Changes in benefits
Benefit payments, including
refunds of employee
contributions
Net change in total pension
liability
Total pension liability -
beginning
Total pension liability - ending

(a)

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Net investment income

Benefit payments
Administrative and other
expense

Net change in plan fiduciary net
position

Plan fiduciary net position -
beginning

Plan fiduciary net position —
ending (b)

Net pension liability - ending (a)-

(b)

Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total
pension liability

Covered - employee payroll

Net pension liability as
percentage of covered-
employee payroll

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
(UNAUDITED)
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

FY 2019 FY 2018 FY 2017 FY 2016 FY 2015 FY 2014

$ 3521,688 $ 3,511,108 $ 3548776 $ 3,152,017 $ 3,256,167 $ 3,220,329
11,463,532 10,837,217 10,678,090 10,328,232 9,734,270 9,285,364
1,919,478 (324,038) (1,980,198) 581,539 (1,437,389) -

- (4,902,279) 8,835,307 - (2,354,661) -

(7,925,026) (7,101,870) (6,410,415) (5,988,393) (5,522,982) (5,059,144)
8,979,672 2,020,138 14,671,560 8,073,395 3,675,405 7,446,549
160,611,316 158,591,178 143,919,618 135,846,223 132,170,818 124,724,269
$ 169,590,988 $ 160,611,316 $ 158,591,178 $ 143,919,618 $ 135,846,223 $ 132,170,818
$ 8704519 $ 7,769,425 $ 6,752,236 $ 5406928 $ 558,985 $ 5,507,642
1,826,209 1,532,206 1,556.483 1,453,722 1,433,343 1,410,488
6,536,424 7,654,116 8,979,321 434,144 1,754,108 10,868,237
(7,925,026) (7,101,870) (6,410,415) (5,988,393) (5,522,982) (5,059,144)
(70,807) (407,211) (117,127) (47,581) (87,934) -
9,071,319 9,446,666 10,760,498 1,258,820 3,161,520 12,727,223
99,538,182 90,091,182 79,331,018 78,072,198 74,910,678 62,183,455

$ 108,609,501 $ 99,538,182 $ 90,091,516 $ 79,331,018 $ 78,072,198 $ 74,910,678
$ 60,981,487 $ 61,073,134 $ 68,499,662 S 64,588,600 $ 57,774,025 $ 57,260,140
64.04% 61.97% 56.81% 55.12% 57.47% 56.68%

$ 20,379,246 $ 19,045878 $ 18,573,174 $ 18,121,290 $ 18,365,293 $ 17,596,462
318.60% 320.66% 368.81% 356.42% 314.58% 325.41%
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Schedule of Pension Plan
Contributions
Last 10 Fiscal Years *

Actuarially Determined
Contribution
Contributions in Relation to the

Actuarially Determined
Contribution

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

Covered-Employee Payroll*

Contributions as a Percentage
of Covered-Employee Payroll*

1

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - Continued

(UNAUDITED)

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

FY 2020 FY 2019 FY 2018 FY 2017 FY 2016 FY 2015
$ 6,839,592 $ 6,837,159 $ 6,263,130 $ 5,715,970 $ 5,406,928 $ 5,065.861
(8,704,519) (8,703,934) (7,769,768) (6,752,236) (5,406,928) (5,584,985)
$ (1,864,927) $ (1,866,775) S (1,506,638) S (1,036,266) S - $ (519.124)

$ 19,140,650

45.48%

$ 20,379,246 S 19,045878 $ 18,573,174 $ 18,121,290 $ 18,365,293

42.71% 40.79% 36.35% 29.84% 30.41%

Covered-Employee Payroll represented above is based on pensionable earnings provided by the employer. However, GASB

68 defines covered-employee payroll as the total payroll of employees that are provided pensions through the pension plan.
Pensionable earnings are covered employee payroll reduced for earnings and other earnings adjustments not subject to

pension contributions.

* Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only six years are shown.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - Continued
(UNAUDITED)
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Schedule of OPEB Plan Contributions
Last 10 Fiscal Years *

FY 2020 FY 2019 FY 2018

Actuarially Determined Contribution S 1,300,000 S 1,676,000 S 1,426,947
Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially

Determined Contribution (3,911,488) (3,674,502) (3,454,933)
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) S (2,611,488) S (1,998,502) S (2,027,985)
Covered-Employee Payroll S 21,671,910 $ 20,379,247 S 19,556,203
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered-Employee

Payrolf 18.05% 18.03% 17.67%

* Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation, therefore only three years are shown.
Valuation Date:
Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of June 30, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in

which contributions are reported.

Methods and Assumptions used to Determine Contributions Rates:

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal Cost Method

Amortization method Level percentage of payroll, closed

Amortization period 15 years

Asset valuation method 5 year smoothed market

Discount rate 6.75 percent

Healthcare cost trend rates 7.75% for pre-65 and 6.00% for post-65

Salary increases 3.52 percent

Investment rate of return 6.75 percent

Retirement age In the 2019 actuarial valuation, expected retirement ages of
general employees were adjusted to more closely reflect actual
experience.

Mortality Rates based on statistics taken from the latest California PERS

(CalPERS) Pension Valuation Report. The mortality rates include an
assumed improvement in future mortality based on Scale BB projected
to 2028.

66



89

98ESET'T $ TTS'SLY $ €L 0€9°0L $ 961'¢8E S o'y § 86€'sT $  Ler'ees $  096°s€1 $ NOILISOd LAN ANV ‘STO¥NO0STY 40
SMOTLINI QIYYIAAA ‘STLLITEVIT TVLIOL
16£'0F LEL'Y 0SLy SST°0L 799°S (onL) [ SL6'9 L9T'8 NOLLISOd L3N TVIOL
wI'se L6L'Y 0SL'Y SST01 pLI'E (1L} 6hL'E €81'9 0597 paRLysaaug
Lov'oE § - - SOPT - 0s7 LYS'VT S06°€ 3IIAIIS IGIP 20§ PAOLUSIY
(8s1's2} - - - £80°T - (865°¢) (sse'p) LT spasse [epdes uy Juaursaaut JaN
NOLLISOd LAN
ST'E6 T6L'L 80€ - LpE'oy 602 861°1 §29'¢ PLY'LE SAUNOSTY 40 SMOTINI ATNITIAA TVLOL
LEL'Y LEL'Y - - - - - - - S[E1I2JOp A JO PU UOISED
SIH's8 ps0°e 80¢ - LYEOY 60T $6I°T s79'¢ pLYLE SHpaad faoyeuioy
SIOUNOSTY 4O SMOTINT ANNIAAA
€P8100°T YE6°T91 S86°'T SLE'09 L8TLEE LY6'T 66L°ST L6S'TTE 61006 SALLITIEVIT TVLOL
£86'788 T6¥'SHT €8LT $£9°0€ 158°90€ - £90°07 168767 067°¢8 SALLITEVIT INTHEND-NON TVLOL
9€9°009 - - - 9€5°90€ - 788'61 €1L'8ST S0S°ST 1ou 9qop uLIA-3uey
679°99 " B - €81 D 191 - S87°99 SEONEINGQ IUNUIINIY JISSY
896°8T . B o = - - $96°ST - Anpqery desms el ysasapu]
LPLEET 88Y'78 £8LT yE9'0€ 431 n - 01T'LT 00S°T spsodap sopo pue saasasaa Jupesedg
€00'€9 £00'€9 - - - - - - - semIqeY GAdO Pue uoisuad JaN
SALLITIVIT INTHHN)-NON
098°81T €PvLL 07 ThL'6T 95£°0€ L¥6'T 9SL'E 90L°LT 6L SALLITEVIT INTHHND TVLOL
£26°L = - # 6IT'T . s £80°9 6LT ajquAed Jsa10)us panidy
orFor - - - SISTI s SLST STL0T S65'Y 192p w.2)-3uoy yo uogiod JuaLn)
18561 - - - SLI'ST 0167 L19 05T (144 soat3s Suyesadp
£66 - w0z - - - - - 16L SUBAPE JIGUIBIA
£5T°08 A s - ThL'67 § L8 s L€ $ $ sp9 $ SeEL $ sasuadxa pansade puv djquied sjunoddy
SALLIUEVIT INTNAND
SALLITIIVI'T
pauiquo) A>uady SRNUARS 1SST 1L, AL 1) AB1duy WY "ON sagIey ILIIIPOIPAH [LUEEIHT )
»nyo JIGUIdA 2 1Mo po1 1D epde)
pajenossy paseyaang Jpdynpy
SADUNOSTU NOISSTNSN VAL ¥ ONLLVIINID
0207 ‘0€ dunp
(pony1wo 5,000)

SNOILVIOJUOD YIMOd AALVIDOSSY ANV
ADNADV HIMOd VINHOATTVD NYTHLION

NOILISOd LAN A0 INAINALVLS DNINITFINOD

(QALIANVYNN) NOLLVINMOANI AYVINTNATIINS



oL

uopEUIquIo) U] PV «

$89'ZI1 § LE6'LS $ S8 $ epI‘ll $ $ opL's1 [31 $ ssT $ orT'ee $ I87's $ 163k jo pug
790°T01 wL'EY €£9 6IL'E LIE'S T 68T 8050T V9L auaf yo Swuudeg
97911 (s08‘s) 8rs) YIv'L 6H'T1 - (rez‘D) €LY (295D SINATVAINOT HSVD
ANV HSVD NI #INVHD LIN
(Lr's) (Lsp'eT) (681°€) s1£71) €6L°01 8ST (87D SI€'8 9LY'T SALLIALLDV ONIONVNIA GALVIZY ANV
TVLIAVI-NON IWOYA SMOTL HSVO LAN
- (8LETT) SOL'T (zso‘o1) 988°6 (zos) (999°7) 902°01 ToI'€  sureadoud 12130 (0y)uiony syuawrie g
(Lez'zD) @w'n) (zvo'y) (£97°7) (ive) 096 (8€) (5D (865) syuedipnred o) spungoy
€28'€ €1€ (zs?) " 8Y8°1 - 9LYT s9r ((%4] spasdoad PO
SALLIALLOV ONIONVNIA QALVIZY
ANV TVLIdVI-NON WOYL SMOTA HSVD
(67g‘€L) {o1) (ss) - (8L6°cE) (6v€) (€L9°8) r86'c2) (921'9) SALLIALLDV ONIDONVNIA QILVITN
ANV TVLIdVD WOYA SMOT4 HSVD LAN
(osv's7) - * = - - (0st's7) - . 199p punjos 0) spuRwAEF
8€LTT - - - - - 8€L7T - - SINSSI PUOQ WIOLJ SPIAIOIY
(ove‘ee) - - - (ovo‘z1) - (s61'p) (589°21) (0zv'y) 1q2p wray-3uof uo yuawAvdas [edung
(oey'L7) - - o (S66°€T) N (€LLT) @iz (1sv) 1q9p wad)-3uof uo pred ysasajuy
009 - - - 00¥°9¢ - - - - u—unann_—. 19sSe uo u—,.owuek_ Jqueansuy
(vz'or) (or1) (s8) & (rEpr) (6v€) L (z8) {(ssz'D sued JLUIIYR Jo UOHINYSUCD puk uoHNSIMDIY
SALLIALLOV ONIONVNIA
QALVTIY NV TVLIAVD WO¥A SMOTA HSYD
91£'s {2¥0‘s) 16 622'8 V11 1€ POT'Y (96801} L0TT STLLIALLOY ONLLSTANL
WO¥A SMOTI HSVD LAN
(seL'9sT) {z9v°Ls) - (8PLY) (p197) - (p9s) (g91°0p) (pS9°17) SHUDLYSIAUL JO ISLYIANG
9p9's SPS'T 16 0S9°T 69L 1€ 8 9€L WL SJUGUISIAU] PUE YSED UO PIAI J533pu]
Sop'osT SL8'9Y - LTETT L98'9€ - 989'y 1£5°vE 61T2C SJUDUISIAUL JO SIES PUE SIPLIMBU WOLJ SPIFV0IJ
SALLIALLDV ONLLSIANI WO¥A SMO'TA HSVD
€11'88 888'91 S09°'T 00S°EL [ % 091 €91’y v62°87 18 SALLIALLOV ONLLVYAdO
WOUI SMO'TI HSVD LIN
- - 95 - (6s¢) (og1) (sL) 60 808 » swieaGoud syjo (op)woy sjuwwdeg
(sv6'sLy) 660°1T (seL's) (rzz'vop) (zeL'se) (e€0p) (9Ls°D) @19'sn) Lzr'ne) 2314105 pue spoo3 aoy szoyddns oy spudurkeg
(989°z1) = (LogZD) - (1pees) r6s‘T) (800°1) (z82°9) (pes‘sT) 52014498 20 K0[durd 10y spuswILBY
STH'861 LSL'E 096 £65°711 60T°LE 866 LLL S0Z'€T 9T0°LY S191410 WIOIJ PIATRINY
6ZETIY § €07 S 161°1T § IET'€0E $ $ stros $ STZ6'y § SpeE'L § 787'sT $ 8L6'9T $ spuedpnred woiy paatadsy
SALLIALLOV ONLLVYIJ0 WOHA SMOTI HSVD
[T Auady SRS 1SSI 1L L JIJUI)) AS19 3UQ *0; SR, LYIDACIPA [eWLIAYY0IS)
q 0 "ON CUETE ] 1 PAH
pauquio) 2Yo QU 3 smog 1oy 10 epded
PajeIdOSSY paseqang spdunpy

SADANOSTY NOISSTNSNVUL ¥ ONLLVIANTD

0702 ‘0 dung papuy Juax ap

Joq

(ponwo §,000)
SNOLLVHOJHO0D YIMOd QILVIDOSSY ANV
ADNADV HAMOd VINIOIITVO NUTHLION
MOTA HSVD 40 SINAWILVLS ONINITWOD

(QALIAVNA) NOLLVINMOANI ANVINAWA1ddNS



(3

UONEUIqWE)) Uf PAETIUNY «

¥86°IST'T $ ¥PIOT9I €986 196°8S - $ T69't6€ $ o06v'c $ 859°7¢ G $ Leverl $  SEDUNOSHY 40 SMOTALNO ATHNALAA ANV SLISSY TVIOL
LTVTIL SSO'LL - - - 000 - 6€6 7€€'67 101°69 SEDUNOSTY 0 SMOTLLAO ATIYIITA TVIOL
101°29 - - - . [7A] - LST - 99L°T9 SUONESIQQ FUURINIY JSSY
SS0°LT SSO'LY = N - - - - % - SjeLRJOp FAJOQ PUt Uoisuag
ILe'se - - - - w81 - L TEE'6T SEE'T 199p Jo Surpunja uo 1503 S5IXY
SADUNOSTY 40 SMOTALNO AIHAAATA
LSS6E0°T 6S6°EHT £+8°6 19685 : 269°T6€ 06¥'€ GIL'IE L6H'6IE 96£°08 SLASSY TVIOL
£OPPTT 6LG'LS SEb - - ¥89'PT - 688'8 $OLTEL (gpe) SLASSY HAHLO TVLOL
S9T S92 - - - - = - - - Auedwod paye ur 1
SEp - SEp - - - - - - - £)503 UoNESY 1 pue A3Asns Lieunuipag
€0L°€TT PILLS - - - ¥89°P7 - 688°8 $9LTET (8re) sjasse Liojen3ay
SLASSV WAHLO
909‘EL9 S9£°S6 LEE WL'ST - S95°TPE 1881 0Z8'sT SLE'SEL 095'TS SLASSV INANUNINON TVLOL
81 - - - - 81 - - - - §521801d-UI-10M UOHINISUO))
(690'v00°D) {1ov') (zos) - (ogL'L) (0L1°96) (oL9've) (Los‘0s) (L6912} (9ze'6€5) uoyera1dap paEmmNE 53]
99€°905°T P66's 6£8 - ogLL £S8°€TY T55°9€ 58'%9 080°S6E 09¥°1LS 2014195 uj Jueyd ST
65HTST ULL'Te - 20L°ST - 980°9 - - 6L6'6 0T6'LT papLysaIu
899°9T - N - - bI9's - s€S'T €10°s 908°T pajLysay
SJUBULYSIAT]
SLASSY INTHNNINON
8PS'EPT (s8¢g'6) 1L0° 65T'€E ] (e 809'T 010'L $SESY P8I°6Z SLASSV INTMHND TV.LOL
- (yo1°sL) 7s€'8 9LYLT = LELTT €021 $o1'7 LST OIS‘TT »sweadoad aaypo pue LHuady woay ang
6L9°T 18§ oy - - 10¢ sy o 76€ 0z sasuadxa predaag
1688 - - - - £07'7 65¢ T PLST 605y sayddns pue Liojudauy
09¢°1 8LL € €51 - L8 - 91 181 Wi AIqBAI2931 J5aI04U]
679'T £s¥ - T06°T - - - - - SLT 20
[1x4 €61 € - - - - . " - syuedpyaeg
AR SHUNONY
109°9 200'¢ - - - 665°C - - = - PpaaLysasuy
06017 - - - - Lel'e - sTr'e 286'6 98L'Y paypLysay
SHUIWPSIAU]
8S0°6L wL'ey £€9 6IL°E - £op 1 1 €9'9 LI6'E papLsauy
$00'27 $ - - - - $ 9167 $ - $ 881 $  sL8'el § su't $ PSIY
m—-._v_ﬂ.»_:vu Ysed pue yse)
SLASSY INTHNND
pauluio) .mu-uu< SPIARS uolssjususd ], MUQD "ON AU nhQEH AUQ "N sayReq u_»-.—uu—g..ﬁhmm [euLIpoIs) SLASSV
Rl iTs) JAqUIAA » IaM0g uolssiusues, 1po] 1D —N—mﬂuo
pAaEDOSsY pasegang adump
SADUNOSTY NOISSTASN VUL ¥ INLLVYANTD
610Z ‘o€ dung
(panrmo s,000)

SNOILVIOJYOD YIMOd AALVIDOSSY ANV
AINIODV 4IMO0d VINIOAITVD NUTFHLYON

NOILISOd LAN 40 INJNALVLS ONINIFINOD

(QALIANVNN) NOLLVINMOANI A VINTWATIINS



YL

opRUIqUIO) Ul PACUILIILT «

9LESE $ L65T $ €ISy $ 8SI‘ $ - $ €0SL s (esLT) $ € $ 89l § €566 $ 1834 Jo pug ‘NOLLISOd LAN
8908 LES 86L°9 960°8 " [Z3 (929) 60F LSEL £T6°11 A834 Jo Zuyumidag ‘NOLLISOd LAN
80€ 09L°T (586‘1) (856°0) ¥ (144 (Lzr'n 4} S6T°9 (0L6°1) NOLLISOd LAN NI (ASVAUDEA) ASVIAUINI
(8L ¥96'0) (68L°s) (815°7) = oFS°T 206 (o91) (802'7) (186'7) SINVAIDLLEVd OL SANQATH
(r6L's) (LLo'y) - - - 116 - (€80°0) (LL6'D) (s9s) SINNONWY T TEVIIAODTY TANLAI
(pLL0T) 100y [} LLS‘T - (6¥2'8) [ [ (rp9‘0z) £FS SANNAATY (STSNAIXT) ONILVHIIO NON TVLOL
0L0‘8 20¢ 2 2] S 9LT'S [ €LV'T S s BRPO
LPFOL 660'F oo SI8T . £05°T T 991 (1241 STET duIoduy JsaIUY
(1676£) - - - - (8zLvT) - (sr'n) (68220} {L8L) asuadxa jsasapuy

SANNIATY (SASNAIXT) ONILVIIIO NON

IS0y 0or'y 099°€ (L67°0) - LSO0T (1£0°0) SOT‘T PIITE £€0'T SANNIATE ONILVYHEIO LIN
STI'959 (p8e’e) 95L°61 SOTILY s §96°98 ISETT 186'S 959°LT L89'SE SASNAIXT ONILVYIJO TVLOL
- - (29) - - [33 101 £L LLT (zoL) w1ou ‘saseyaand (sofes) Kuedwodayuy
$0£°6T (9zL'¢) STL - - pLE'Y 608 979 020's LYY [£13u33 pue JADEHSIMIMIPY
9€8°97 £ 24 - = §20's 0Ts'L 099 Wy $97°6 uBUNUIE
rrsioe s o1 - - LIS'PL 261 $0z'c 1L¥'s PI6E uogenadeq
££9'081 - s 688°3LT ] LSL 602 0s vsy 697 uossyusuEL,
06666 * 091°TK IUTY # 65995 6E1T €617 T6¥'y 7L0°8I suonesdQ
$05°867 - - 8E6°88T - 079 18€ SLY ToL'E £69 aamod paseypmg
SASNAIXT ONILVHIIO
991°669 9101 9IF'ET 908'59¥ T°0°L6 [Z533 980'L 08L'8S 0TL'9E SANNIATE ONILVEEJO TVIOL
187°67€ v 1L 09K'29T - PLS'SL 910'7 LET'T SOT'sY PLT'9E Avted-payy po
S88°69€ $ T $ soLor $ ope‘coe $ - S sp'sI $ bog'L $ 6¥6'y § sLo'er § orv $ sjuedpnaeg
SANNAATE ONLLVIIJIO
pauiquio)) Aduady SNIARS ISSI 1L, ISST 1L 13U AUy uQ "oN sanIey ILYIROIPAY [eULISYI03)
BPO Jquspy ¥ Lomog poy 12 eude)
parEROsSsYy paseyoang sdynpy

SADANOSTY NOISSTWSNVUL ¥ ONLLVIANID
6T0T ‘0€ dung papuy 16X ) 104

(pap1wo 5,000)
SNOLLVIOJdUOD ¥IMOd AALVIDOSSV ANV
ADNADV YAMOd VINHOAI'TYD NUAHLION

NOLLISOd LAN NI STONVHD ANV SASNAIXT ‘SANNTATE 40 INTWALVLS ONINITWNOD

(QALIANVYNN) NOLLVINHOANI AMVINTWITdINS



oL

$ 1034 Jo puyg

parLysaIun - spurpeamnbs yses pue yse)

$ PaJILYSa - spud[eAInba ysed pue yse)

NOILLISOd LAN 40 SINAWALVLS OL SINTIVAINOX
HSVD NV HSVD 0 NOLLVITIDNODTH

$ SHILIAILDYV ONILVIIJO WO¥A HSVD LIN

sagIpqer 1yo pue sjqeied sjunoddy
s)pasd Kiojemday
S2IURAPE JIGUIITAT
syisodap Jagloe puk saA1353a Supgeradg
asuadxd predaad pue Alojusauy
QLA SHUNOIIY
NI STIONVHD A9 GLLOVIAI SMOTd HSVD

uonedadaq
:sapuayoe Sunesado woay ysed Jou 0)
sanuaAds Sunerado Jou apou0dA 0 spusuysnipy
$ Jwodu fuyeradg
SHELTALLDV ONILVIIJO WO¥A SMOTA HSVD LAN
OL SIANIATI ONILVIAdO LAN 40 NOLLVITIONODTH

790°101 $ TvL'so § €€9 § 6IL'€ s - $ 6Is's $ 1 S 68t'L $ LOS‘0Z $ WYL
8S0°6L wL'E9 €€9 6TLE - £0F 1 [ 7€9°9 LIG'E
P00°7T $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 916'C s - $ 88Kl $ sig'el $ su'e
61868 S 981's $ o8 § sLTer $ - $ 669°07 $ 9eST $ 665 $ €LLLE $ 6vEY
L98°91 (T6L) (108) 006°LT - (ZrL) 08 (9] L9€ [T
(ros‘7) (ove) 65 2 » (el (osT) L) (9g9) (¢4
i€ - e - - - - - - -
6L6 LIY'y [(25:%3]) Pov'z - (1¥6) 996°1 (09} @) (s16)
ShL 61 (67) - - (cot) 6€0°1 76€ (9g5) (0g)
s11) 6€1 169 (zeL) § 65 - - - 5L
S68°€L WLy yoL'E {L6T'9) » YLOPT (6£8°D) 60€'s s65°0F LY6'Y
Pr80E e Q) - - LI9PT 261 POTT 1L¥'6 tl6's
5154 S o0r'r $ 099 $ (L6T'9) $ - $ LSOOI s (1£0'7) $ SOT‘T § PIIIE $ €€0'T
pauiquio)y Aduady FEETINET ISSH 1L 1551 1L 131D A3ruy ugQ ‘oN sanIey IIR0IPAH [GTTEITTESY
HYo B P omog pog 10 fende)
PALI0SEY paseqoang apdny

SADANOSTY NOISSTNSN VUL ¥ ONLLVIINTD

6102 °0€ dunp pIpU Ie§ 3y Jo]

(peswio 5,000)
SNOLLVIOJY0D YAMOd GALVIDOSSY ANV
ADNADV YIMOd VINJOIITVD NUTHLION

panunue)) - MOTA HSVD 40 INIWALVLS ONINITNOD

(QALIANVNN) NOLLVINMOANI XY VINANATIANS



C bakertilly

To the Commissioners of
Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power Corporations
Roseville, California

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
the combined financial statements of the Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power
Corporations (the Agency) as of and for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the combined basic financial statements of the Agency, and
have issued our report thereon dated October 5, 2020.

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the Agency failed to
comply with the terms, covenants, provisions, or conditions of the Indentures of Trust for the bonds described in
Attachment A between U.S. Bank and the Agency, insofar as they relate to financial and accounting matters.
However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly,
had we performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to our attention regarding the Agency's
noncompliance with the above-referenced terms, covenants, provisions, or conditions of the Indenture, insofar
as they relate to accounting matters.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners of the Agency and
U.S. Bank, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Boufeor. 7‘;% s, 127

Baker Tilly US, LLP (formerly known as Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP)
Madison, Wisconsin
October 5, 2020

Baker Tilly US, LLP, trading as Baker Tilly, is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members of which are
separate and independent legal entities. © 2020 Baker Tilly US, LLP



Attachment A

> Geothermal Project Number 3 Revenue Bonds, 2012 Series A, dated September 2012

> Geothermal Project Number 3 Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2016 Series A, dated September 2016

> Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bonds, 2008 Refunding Series A, dated April 2008

> Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bonds, 2012 Refunding Series A & B, dated February 2012
> Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bonds, 2018 Refunding Series A, dated March 2018

> Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bonds, 2019 Refunding Series A, dated April 2019

> Capital Facilities Project Revenue Bonds, 2019 Refunding Series A, dated December 2019

> Lodi Energy Center Revenue Bonds, Issue One, 2010 Series B, dated June 2010

> Lodi Energy Center Revenue Bonds, Issue Two, 2010 Series B, dated June 2010

> Lodi Energy Center Revenue Bonds, Issue One, 2017 Series A, dated December 2017
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To the Commissioners of
Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power Corporations
Roseville, California

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
the combined financial statements of the Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power
Corporations (the Agency) as of and for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the combined basic financial statements of t